


Annual Report 2017–18

1

ANNUAL REPORT 
2017 - 18

TABLE OF CONTENT Page No.

1. Corporate Informa  on  2

2. No  ce of Annual General Mee  ng  3

3.      Board’s Report  10

4. Management Discussion and Analysis  17

5. Independent Auditor's Report  32

6. Balance Sheet  38

7. Statement of Pro t and Loss  39

8. Cash Flow Statement  40

9. Notes to the Financial Statements  42

10. Proxy Form & A  endance Slip 69



Annual Report 2017–18

2

CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
   (As on 31st July 2018)

SRI G.P.N.GUPTA
SRI G.V. GOPINATH
SRI G.S.SRIDHAR
SRI  G.S.RAJASEKAR
SRI S.RAMAKRISHNAN
SRI M.RAVINDRA REDDY
MS. SHOBHA GUPTA
SRI R SUKUMAR

Chairman
Managing Director
Joint Managing Director & CFO
Director
Director
Director
Director 
Director 

REGISTERED OFFICE ‘S.K. ENCLAVE’ New No. 4, (Old No. 47), 
Nowroji Road, Chetpet, 
Chennai – 600 031 
Phone: 26451722, 26461415, 26452325  
Fax: 91-44-26451720, 
E-Mail: info@blissgroup.com
Website: www.blissgroup.com
CIN: L36991TN1991PLC021888

WORKS Sholiyapalayam Village, Sholavaram,
Ponneri Taluk, Chennai 600 067, Tamil Nadu

REGISTRARS AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.
Subramaniam Building, No.1, 
Club House Road, Mount Road 
Chennai-600 002 
Phone: 044–28460390 Fax: 044-28460129    

LISTING Bombay Stock Exchange Limited

BANKERS Karnataka Bank Limited

COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE OFFICER Ms. M. Uma Maheswari

STATUTORY AUDITORS M/s.  J.V. Ramanujam & Co, 
Chartered Accountants
F-1, Lakshmi, Old No.28, New No.56,
Third Main Road, Raja Annamalaipuram
Chennai 600028

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS M/S. Lakshmmi Subramanian & Associates,
Prac� sing Company Secretaries, Chennai

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING Date & Time 26th September 2018, 
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IMPORTANT COMMUNICATION

The Ministry of Corporate Aff airs has taken a “Green Ini� a� ve in the Corporate Governance” by allowing paperless compliances 
by the companies and has issued circulars, sta� ng that service of no� ce/ documents including Annual Report can be sent by
e – mail to its members. To support this green ini� a� ve of the Government in full measure, members who have not registered 
their e – mail addresses, so far, are requested to register their e – mail addresses in respect of electronic holdings with the 
depository through their concerned Depository Par� cipants. Members who hold shares in physical form are requested to 
register their mail address with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent viz. Cameo corporate Services Ltd, Chennai.



Annual Report 2017–18

3

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty-Seventh Annual General Mee� ng of the Members of the Stanpacks (India) Limited is 
scheduled to be held at 10.30 A.M on Wednesday, the 26th September 2018 at Andhra Mahila Sabha, No. 109, Luz Church 
Road, Mylapore, Chennai - 600004 to transact the following business:
ORDINARY BUSINESS:
Item No. 01: Adop  on of Annual Accounts:
To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31st March, 2018 and the Statement of Pro t 
and Loss for the Financial Year ended on that date and the report of the Board of Directors’ and Auditor’s thereon.
Item No. 02: Reappointment of Director:
To appoint a director in place of Sri G.P.N. Gupta (DIN: 00086174) who re� res by rota� on and being eligible, off ers himself 
for re-appointment.
SPECIAL BUSINESS:
Item No. 03:
To re-appoint Sri. S.Ramakrishnan (DIN: 00075368) as an Independent Director and in this regard, consider and if thought  t, 
to pass with or without modi ca� on(s), the following resolu� on as Special resolu� on:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec� ons 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Quali ca� on of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modi ca� on(s) 
or re-enactment thereof for the � me being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Act and the applicable provisions of the 
SEBI (Lis� ng Obliga� ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula� ons, 2015, Sri. S.Ramakrishnan, Independent Non-Execu� ve 
Director of the Company who holds offi  ce as an Independent Director up to March 31, 2019 and who has submi� ed a 
declara� on that he meets the criteria for independence as provided in Sec� on 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for 
reappointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Non-Execu� ve Director of the Company to hold offi  ce for 
another term of  ve consecu� ve years with eff ect from 1st April, 2019 to 31st March, 2024”.
Item no.04:
To sell immovable property of the company situated at Nellore and in this regard, consider and if thought  t, to pass with or 
without modi ca� on(s), the following resolu� on as Special resolu� on:
“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Sec� on 180(1)(a), and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013, and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modi ca� on or re-enactment thereof for the � me being 
in force), and the applicable provisions of the lis� ng agreement entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange, 
and the provisions of the Memorandum and Ar� cles of Associa� on of the Company, and subject to such other applicable 
statutes and regula� ons and subject to the approval of Govt. of India and such other approvals, consents and permissions 
being obtained from the appropriate authori� es to the extent applicable and necessary, the consent of the Members be 
and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereina� er referred as the “Board” which term shall be 
deemed to include any Commi� ee thereof), to sell / transfer / dispose off  the immoveable property situated at Nellore, in 
the State of Andhra Pradesh, and realize the considera� on on such terms and condi� ons and with such modi ca� ons as may 
be required by any of the concerned authori� es or as the Board of the Company may deem  t and appropriate in the best 
interest of the Company.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised and empowered to  nalise and execute necessary 
documents, Agreements, deeds of assignment/ conveyance and other ancillary documents, with eff ect from such date and in 
such manner as decided by the Board to do all such other acts, deeds, ma� ers and things as they may deem necessary and/
or expedient to give eff ect to the above resolu� on including without limita� on, to se� le any ques� ons, diffi  cul� es or doubts 
that may arise in regard to sale of property as they may in their absolute discre� on and in the best interest of the Company.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred, 
to any Commi� ee of Directors or any one or more Directors of the Company with power to delegate to any Offi  cers of the 
Company, with authori� es as required.”

By Order of the Board
For Stanpacks (India) Limited

Place : Chennai 
Date  :  9th August 2018

M. Uma Maheswari 
Company Secretary 
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NOTES:

1.  A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND 
VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

2.  Pursuant to the provisions of Sec� on 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a proxy on behalf of 
not more than  � y members and holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of the total Share Capital of the 
Company. Members holding more than ten percent of the total Share Capital of the Company may appoint a single 
person as proxy, who shall not act as a proxy for any other Member. The proxy form duly stamped and executed should 
be deposited / lodged at the Registered Offi  ce of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of 
the Mee� ng. Proxies submi� ed on behalf of Limited Companies, Socie� es etc., must be supported by an appropriate 
resolu� on / authority, as applicable.

3.  Members / Proxies should bring the A� endance slip duly  lled in for a� ending the mee� ng. Members are requested 
to bring their copy of the Annual Report. No addi� onal copies will be provided at the venue. 

4.  During the period beginning 24 hours before the � me  xed for the commencement of the mee� ng and ending with 
the conclusion of the mee� ng, a member would be en� tled to inspect the proxies lodged at any � me during the 
business hours of the company, provided that not less than three days of no� ce in wri� ng is given to the Company.

5.  The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sec� on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out details rela� ng to 
Special Business at the mee� ng, is annexed hereto.

6.  Addi� onal informa� on pursuant to Regula� on 36(3) of the Securi� es and Exchange Board of India (Lis� ng Obliga� ons 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regula� ons, 2015 in respect of the Director seeking re-appointment as men� oned 
under item no. 2 and 3 of this no� ce is appended. Further, the Company has received relevant disclosure/consent 
from the Director seeking appointment.

7.  The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Sec� on 170 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Register of contracts or arrangements in which the Directors are interested under Sec� on 
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspec� on by the Members at the Annual General Mee� ng.

8.  Members are requested to in� mate the Company, queries, if any, regarding the accounts/no� ce, not less than seven 
days before the mee� ng to enable the management to keep the required informa� on readily available at the mee� ng.

9.  The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 20th September 2018 to 
26th September 2018 (both days inclusive) in terms of the provisions of Sec� on 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the applicable clauses of the SEBI (Lis� ng Obliga� ons and Disclosures Requirements Regula� ons) 2015 entered into 
with the Stock Exchanges.

10.  A route map along with prominent landmark for easy reach to the venue of annual general mee� ng is annexed with 
this no� ce.

11.  Annual Report 2018 with A� endance Slip and Proxy form are being sent by electronic mode only to all the members 
whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depository Par� cipant (s) for communica� on purpose unless 
a member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email address, 
physical copies of the Annual Report for 2018 are being sent by the permi� ed mode.

12.  Members may note that the No� ce of the 27th Annual General Mee� ng and the Annual Report 2018 will also be 
available on the Company’s website www.blissgroup.com. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be 
available at the Company’s Registered Offi  ce for inspec� on between working hours 11.00 A.M to 1.00 P.M. except on 
holidays. Members who require communica� on in physical form in addi� on to e-communica� on, or have any other 
queries, may write to us at cs-sl@blissgroup.com.    

13.  The Securi� es and Exchange Board of India has mandated submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every 
par� cipant in securi� es market. Members holding shares in demat form are, therefore, requested to submit PAN 
details to the Depository Par� cipants with whom they have demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form 
can submit their PAN details to M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited, the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the 
Company.

14.  SEBI has also mandated that for registra� on of transfer of securi� es, the transferee(s) as well as transferor(s) shall 
furnish a copy of their PAN card to the Company for registra� on of transfer of securi� es.
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15.  The Company is concerned about the environment and u  lizing natural resources in a suitable way. We request 
you to update your email address with your Depository par  cipant to enable us to send all the communica  ons via 
email.

16. E Vo� ng & its procedures:
Vo  ng through Electronic Means:
•  In compliance with provisions of Sec� on 108 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Management 

and Administra� on) Rules, 2014, as subs� tuted by the Companies (Management and Administra� on) Amendment 
Rules, 2015 (‘Amended Rules 2015’) and Regula� on 44 of the Lis� ng Regula� ons and Secretarial Standard on General 
Mee� ngs (SS2) issued by the Ins� tute of Company Secretaries of India, the Company is pleased to provide its members 
facility to exercise their right to vote on resolu� ons proposed to be considered, the Company is pleased to off er 
E-Vo� ng facility as an alternate, for its shareholders to enable them to cast their votes electronically at the 27th Annual 
General Mee� ng (AGM) through e-vo� ng service provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited. E-Vo� ng is 
op� onal.

•  The facility for vo� ng through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members a� ending the 
mee� ng who have not cast their vote by remote e-vo� ng shall be able to exercise their right at the mee� ng through 
ballot paper.

•  The members who have cast their vote by remote e-vo� ng prior to the AGM may also a� end the AGM but shall not be 
en� tled to cast their vote again. The remote e-vo� ng period commences at 9.00 a.m. on Sunday, 23rd September 2018 
and will end at 5.00 p.m. on Tuesday, 25th September, 2018. During this period members of the Company, holding 
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off  date of 19th September, 2018, may cast their 
vote by remote e-vo� ng. The remote e-vo� ng module shall be disabled by CDSL for vo� ng therea� er. Once the vote 
on a resolu� on is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

•  The Company has appointed Smt. Lakshmmi Subramanian, Prac� cing Company Secretary, to act as the Scru� nizer, for 
conduc� ng the scru� ny of the votes cast and she has communicated her willingness to be appointed. The Scru� nizer, 
a� er scru� nising the votes cast at the mee� ng (Insta Poll) and through remote e-vo� ng, will, not later than three days 
of conclusion of the Mee� ng, make a consolidated scru� nizer’s report and submit the same to the Chairman. The 
results declared along with the consolidated scru� nizer’s report shall be placed on the website of the Company www.
blissgroup.com and CDSL website. The results shall simultaneously be communicated to the Bombay Stock Exchange 
Limited.

The Members desiring to vote through electronic mode may refer to the detailed procedure on e-vo� ng given hereina� er:
In case of members receiving e-mail:
(i) Log on to the e-vo� ng website www.evo� ngindia.com
(ii) Click on “Shareholders” tab.
(iii) Now, select the “COMPANY NAME” from the drop down menu and click on “SUBMIT”
(iv)  Now Enter your User ID (For CDSL: 16 digits bene ciary ID, For NSDL: 8 character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company and then enter the 
Captcha Code as displayed and Click on Login.

(v)  If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www.evo� ngindia.com and voted on an earlier vo� ng of 
any company, then your exis� ng password is to be used. If you are a  rst � me user follow the steps given below.

(vi) Now,  ll up the following details in the appropriate boxes:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN* Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat 
shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

DOB# Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for the said demat 
account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.

Dividend 
Bank Details#

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for the 
said demat account or folio.
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*Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Par� cipant are requested to use the  rst two 
le� ers of your name and the sequence number in the PAN  eld. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 
1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN  eld.
# Please enter any one of the details in order to login. In case either of the details is not recorded with the depository please 
enter the <Default Value> in the Dividend Bank details  eld.
(vii) A� er entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
(viii)  Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the Company selec� on screen. However, members 

holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Crea� on’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily 
enter their login password in the new password  eld. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat 
holders for vo� ng for resolu� ons of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts 
for e-vo� ng through CDSL pla� orm. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 
take utmost care to keep your password con den� al.

(ix)  For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-vo� ng on the resolu� ons contained in 
this No� ce.

(x) Click on <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.
(xi)  On the vo� ng page, you will see Resolu� on Descrip� on and against the same the op� on “YES/NO” for vo� ng. Select 

the op� on YES or NO as desired. The op� on YES implies that you assent to the Resolu� on and op� on NO implies that 
you dissent to the Resolu� on.

(xii) Click on the “Resolu� ons File Link” if you wish to view the en� re Resolu� ons.
(xiii)  A� er selec� ng the resolu� on you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A con rma� on box will be displayed. If 

you wish to con rm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your 
vote.

(xiv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolu� on, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
(xv) You can also take out print of the vo� ng done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” op� on on the Vo� ng page.
(xvi)  If Demat account holder has forgo� en the changed password then enter the User ID and Captcha Code click on Forgot 

Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
(xvii)  Ins� tu� onal shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc. are required to log on to h� ps://www.evo� ngindia.

co.in and register themselves as Corporates. A� er receiving the login details they have to link the account(s) which 
they wish to vote on and then cast their vote. They should upload a scanned copy of the Board Resolu� on and Power 
of A� orney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, in PDF format in the system for the 
scru� nizer to verify the same.

(xviii)  Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Vo� ng available for android based mobiles. The 
m-Vo� ng app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. iPhone and Windows phone users can download the app 
from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respec� vely. Please follow the instruc� ons as prompted by the 
mobile app while vo� ng on your mobile.

In case of members receiving the physical copy:
(A) Please follow all steps from s. no. (i) to s. no. (xvii) above to cast vote.
(B)  The vo� ng period begins on 23.09.2018 and ends on 25.09.2018. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, 

holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off  date (record date) of 19.09.2018, 
may cast their vote electronically. The e-vo� ng module shall be disabled by CDSL for vo� ng therea� er.

(C)  In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-vo� ng, you may refer the Frequently Asked Ques� ons (“FAQs”) 
and e-vo� ng manual available at www.evo� ngindia.co.in under help sec� on or write an email to helpdesk.evo� ng@
cdslindia.com.

Please note that by virtue of providing the e-vo� ng facility by the company as per Rule 20 of Companies (Management and 
Administra� on) Rules, 2014 the following will be applicable:
(i)  The manner of vo� ng for the members being present in the General Mee� ng will be on “propor� on principle’ i.e. 

one share – one vote unlike one person one vote principle, further   provision of the Companies Act, 2013 rela� ng to 
demand for poll will not be relevant.  
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(ii)  The op  on of vo  ng by show of hands will not be available for members present in the General Mee  ng in view of 
clear provision of sec  on 107 of the Companies Act, 2013, i.e. vo  ng by show of hands would not be allowable in cases 
where Rule 20 of Companies (Management and Administra  on) Rules, 2014 is applicable.

(iii)  Any member who has voted through e-vo  ng facility provided by the company may also par  cipate in the General 
Mee  ng in person, but such a member will not be able to exercise his vote again in the mee  ng, and the earlier vote 
casted through electronic means will be treated as  nal.

For your immediate reference, we also give below the loca  on / route map to reach the venue of the Annual General 
Mee  ng of the Company.

Mylapore Tank

Ti
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 S

ta
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n

Valluvar Statue Bus Stop

AGM Venue
Andhra Mahila Sabha

LUZ Church Bus Stop
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013:

Item No. 3:
Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013, Sri. S.Ramakrishnan was appointed as Independent Non-Execu� ve Director of the 
Company by the Members and he holds offi  ce as an Independent Director of the Company up to March 31, 2019. As per 
Sec� on 149(10) of the Act, an Independent Director shall hold offi  ce for a term of upto  ve consecu� ve years on the Board 
of a Company, but shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing a special resolu� on by the Company for another term 
of upto  ve consecu� ve years on the Board of a Company. The Nomina� on and Remunera� on Commi� ee of the Board of 
Directors, on the basis of the report of performance evalua� on, has recommended re-appointment of Sri. S.Ramakrishnan as 
an Independent Director for a second term of 5 ( ve) consecu� ve years on the Board of the Company.
The Board, based on the performance evalua� on of Independent Director and as per the recommenda� on of the Nomina� on 
and Remunera� on Commi� ee, considers that, given his background and experience and contribu� ons made by him during 
his tenure, the con� nued associa� on of Sri. S.Ramakrishnan as Independent Director would be bene cial to the Company 
and it is desirable to con� nue to avail his services as Independent Director. Accordingly, it is proposed to re-appoint Sri. 
S.Ramakrishnan as Independent Director of the Company, not liable to re� re by rota� on and to hold offi  ce for a second term 
of 5 ( ve) consecu� ve years on the Board of the Company.
Based on recommenda� on of Nomina� on and Remunera� on Commi� ee and in terms of the provisions of Sec� ons 149, 150, 
152 read with Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions of the Act and the Lis� ng Regula� ons, Sri. S.Ramakrishnan, 
being eligible for re-appointment as Independent Director and off ering himself for re-appointment, is proposed to be re-
appointed as an Independent Director for another term of  ve consecu� ve years from 1st April, 2019 upto 31st March, 2024 
subject to approval by the Members of the Company at the Annual General Mee� ng. 
Sri. S.Ramakrishnan is not disquali ed from being appointed as Director in terms of Sec� on 164 of the Act and have given 
his consent to act as Director. The Company has also received declara� ons from Sri. S.Ramakrishnan that he meet with the 
criteria of independence as prescribed both under sub-sec� on (6) of Sec� on 149 of the Act and under the Lis� ng Regula� ons. 
In the opinion of the Board, Sri. S.Ramakrishnan ful ll the condi� ons for appointment as Independent Director as speci ed 
in the Act and the Lis� ng Regula� ons.
Details of Sri. S.Ramakrishnan, are provided in the “Annexure” to the No� ce. He shall be paid remunera� on by way of fee 
for a� ending mee� ngs of the Board or Commi� ees thereof or for any other purpose whatsoever as may be decided by the 
Board, reimbursement of expenses for par� cipa� ng in the Board and other mee� ngs and pro t related commission within 
the limits s� pulated under Sec� on 197 of the Act.
Copy of dra�  le� er of appointment of Sri. S.Ramakrishnan se�  ng out the terms and condi� ons of appointment are available 
for inspec� on by the members at the registered offi  ce of the Company.
Except Sri. S.Ramakrishnan, being appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their 
rela� ves are concerned or interested,  nancially or otherwise, in the resolu� on set out at Item No. 3 of the accompanying 
No� ce of the AGM. 
The Board commends the Special Resolu� ons set out at Item Nos. 3 of the No� ce for approval by the members.
Item No. 4:
In terms of the provisions of Sec� on 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), any proposal to sell, lease or dispose 
of the whole, or substan� ally the whole, of the undertaking of the Company or where the Company owns more than one 
undertaking, of the whole, or substan� ally the whole, of any such undertaking, requires the approval of the shareholders of 
the company by way of an special resolu� on.
The opera� ons at Nellore had shut down during the year 2010-11 owing to the market condi� ons pertaining to that area 
which were unsuitable for the produc� on of Hessian bags. As the opera� ons could not be carried forward due to unsuitable 
condi� ons, the Board of Directors of the Company at their mee� ng approved the sale of land. The Company has been 
working on this subject for a while. In the light of the changing economic scenario, the company is con dent of having a good 
sale opportunity of the idle land and building at Nellore and the net proceeds from the sale of the property will be u� lized to 
repay the exis� ng loans and reduce interest burden, or enhancement of working capital of the Company or general business 
purpose. It is desired to use the proceeds from hiving off  of the land to reduce debt. Reduc� on in debt on one hand and 
posi� ve performance of other exis� ng businesses on the other hand, is expected to give much needed  llip to the company’s 
performance. It is hereby informed that necessary ac� on shall be taken for disposing of such non-core asset.
Entering into such sale transac� on is condi� onal inter alia upon passing of the Special Resolu� on by the shareholders of your 
Company and receipt of all the required approvals. The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the proposal to sell 
the land as above and now the ma� er is placed before the members for their approval.
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In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Special Resolu  on as set out in the accompanying 
No  ce is now being placed before the members for their approval. Your Directors recommend the passing of the resolu  on 
as a Special Resolu  on.
None of the Directors and key managerial personnel of the Company or their respec  ve rela  ves are concerned or interested 
in the said Special Resolu  on.

DETAILS OF THE DIRECTOR SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE 27th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
{In pursuance of Regula  on 36(3) of SEBI (Lis  ng Obliga  ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula  ons,

2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Mee  ngs (SS-2)}

Item No. 2 3
Name of Director Sri G.P.N. Gupta Sri. S.Ramakrishnan
Age 72 Years 82 years
Quali ca  on Graduate in Commerce He is a Science Graduate.
Brief pro le including exper  se He has more than 40 years of experience 

in Packaging Industry. Associated with 
the Company as an experienced Director 
since 2010. Exper  se in Corporate 
Finance and General Management

Sri. S.Ramakrishnan  has been in the 
Board of the Company since 2002. He 
was a past Member of Indian Society 
of Training and Development. He was a 
Member of OPPI Marke  ng Commi  ee. 
He is expert in handling produc  on and 
workforce problems and HRD needs.

Date of Appointment 27/05/2010 29/05/2002
Directorships in other companies 1. Jumbo bags Limited. 

2.  Ankur Learning Solu  ons Private 
Limited

None

Chairman/Member of the Commi  ee 
of Board of Directors of the Company

1. Audit Commi  ee -Member 
2. Stakeholders’ Rela  onship 
Commi  ee – Chairman 
3. Share Transfer Commi  ee – Chairman 
4. Nomina  on and Remunera  on 
Commi  ee - Member

1. Audit Commi  ee member   
2. Nomina  on and Remunera  on 
Commi  ee  - Chairman

List of Directorship / Membership / 
Chairmanship of Commi  ees of other 
Board.

Jumbo Bag Limited
1. Audit Commi  ee Member 
2. Stakeholders’ Rela  onship 
Commi  ee – Member 
3. Share Transfer Commi  ee - Member

None

Rela  onship with other Directors None None
Terms and Condi  ons of appointment 
or re-appointment

Sri G.P.N. Gupta is a Non-Execu  ve 
Chairman of the Company, liable to 
re  re by rota  on.

Appointment for a period of  ve years.

Shareholding in Stanpacks India 
Limited

1,89,800 (3.11%) NIL

No. of Board mee  ngs a  ended 
during  the year

6 4

Details of Remunera  on sought to be 
paid

- -

Last Remunera  on drawn - -

By Order of the Board
For Stanpacks (India) Limited

Place : Chennai 
Date  :  9th August 2018

M. Uma Maheswari 
Company Secretary 
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BOARD’S REPORT

To
The Members
Your Directors have pleasure in presen� ng the Twenty Seventh Annual Report, together with the Audited Accounts of the 
Company for the year ended 31st March 2018.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The Company’s  nancial results for the period under review are as follows:-   (Rs. In lakhs)

PARTICULARS 2017-18 2016-17

GROSS REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 3,216.83 3,167.54 

NET REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS & OTHER INCOME 3,228.08 3,255.87

PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST, DEPRECIATION & TAXES 326.74 344.87

INTEREST 211.74 243.01 

DEPRECIATION 68.18 71.10 

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 46.82 30.76

DEFERRED TAX 4.88 12.75

PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAX 28.01 18.02 

PROFIT/ (LOSS) OF EARLIER YEARS (365.91)   (383.93)

PROFIT / (LOSS) (337.90)   (365.91)

 DIVIDEND:

Considering the current  nancial posi� on, the Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend for the  nancial year 
2017-18.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS:

During the year under review, your Company reported gross Revenue from Opera� ons of Rs. 3216.83 lakhs as against Rs. 
3167.54 lakhs during the corresponding period of the previous year. During the year, your Company was able to increase the 
turnover by 1.6% and there was a marginal improvement in the overall performance as compared to the previous year.  The 
market scenario and the general slowdown resulted in a  at top line. The sales volumes were stable and realiza� on improved 
during the Financial Year 2017-18 resul� ng in increase in the Sales turnover and Pro tability for the year. The Net pro t a� er 
deprecia� on, interest and tax stood at Rs. 41.94 lakhs as compared to Rs. 18.02 lakhs in the previous year. The accumulated 
losses as on 31st March 2018 have been decreased to Rs. 337.90 lakhs. The Company has also achieved reasonable sales in 
terms of exports. 
Your Company has demonstrated steady growth on both the top line and the bo� om line. Increase in interest cost due to 
term loan availed by the company and increase in provision for deprecia� on have also put pressure on the bo� om-line of the 
Company. Your company’s signi cant scale, broad geographical exposure focusing on value added applica� ons coupled with 
cost control measures have helped it to register a decent growth in the pro ts of the company during the  nancial year under 
review. The improved performances and the growth in the past years mo� vated your Company to aggressively target the 
compe� � ve market with various innova� ve strategies. The projects implemented recently will give its full results in coming 
year and hence shall improve the pro tability.
During the year, your Company concentrated on product innova� on considering the changing consumer preferences 
and market trend. On growth front, your Company is taking eff orts for expanding the market by eff ec� vely u� lizing the 
available resources, targe� ng the effi  cient and retaining the valuable customers, improving the various cost-cu�  ng and 
value engineering measures for increasing the stability in opera� ng results. Con� nuous working capital support from the 
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bankers also contributed for the improved performances. The Company expects be� er performance during the year 2018-
19 with expec� ng increase in demand for PP bags from various Sectors, which is expec� ng to perform be� er. With the 
current scenario, your management is very con dent of achieving be� er results in the years to come. The Directors trust that 
shareholders will  nd the performance of the company for the  nancial year 2017-18 to be sa� sfactory. 
TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
The Company has made no transfers to reserves during the  nancial year 2017-18.
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
There have been no material changes and commitments aff ec� ng the  nancial posi� on of the Company, which have occurred 
between the end of the  nancial year of the Company to which the  nancial statements relate and the date of this report.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:
As required under Regula� on 34(2) of the SEBI Lis� ng (Obliga� ons and Disclosures) Requirements Regula� ons, the 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report is enclosed as Annexure 1.
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
The details forming part of the extract of Annual Return in form MGT-9 as required under Sec� on 92 of the Companies Act, 
2013 is included in this Report as Annexure – 2 and forms an integral part of this Report.
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP):
Sri. G.P.N. Gupta, Director re� res by rota� on at the ensuing Annual General Mee� ng and being eligible, off ers himself for re-
appointment. The subject forms part of the ordinary business in the No� ce of the 27th Annual General Mee� ng. Your Board 
of Directors recommend his re-appointment. 
Independent Directors Sri. M.V. Chandrashekar and Sri. Sanjay Ramaswami are disquali ed under Sec� on 164(2) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, in view of the provisions of Sec� on 167 of the Companies Act, 2013, the offi  ce of Director 
in the Company of Mr. M.V. Chandrashekar and Mr. Sanjay Ramaswami has become vacant w.e.f. December 15, 2017. Hence, 
they are ceased to be the directors of the Company. The Board of Directors placed on record their apprecia� on for the 
valuable contribu� on made by Sri. M.V. Chandrashekar and Sri. Sanjay Ramaswami for the growth of the Company during 
their tenure as Directors of the Company.
Sri. S. Ramakrishnan has been re-appointed as Independent Director with eff ect from 1st April, 2019 for period of 5 years. 
The above business forms part of No� ce of the 27th Annual General Mee� ng for approval of shareholders. 
NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND BOARDS’ COMMITTEE:
The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on business strategies / policies and review the  nancial 
performances of the Company. The Board Mee� ngs are pre-scheduled and a tenta� ve annual calendar of the Board is 
circulated to the Directors well in advance to facilitate the Directors to plan their schedules.

Mee  ng No. of Mee  ng during the 
Financial Year 2017-18

Date of the Mee  ng

Board Mee� ng 6 30th May 2017, 30th June 2017, 14th September 2017, 
13th December 2017, 14th February 2018 & 19th February, 
2018

Audit Commi� ee 4 30th May 2017, 14th September 2017, 13th December 
2017 & 14th February 2018

Nomina� on & Remunera� on 
Commi� ee

1 30th May, 2017

Share transfer Commi� ee 1 14th August, 2017

Stakeholders’ Grievances 
Commi� ee

- No mee� ng held during the year

The interval between two Board Mee� ngs was well within the maximum period men� oned under sec� on 173 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and SEBI Lis� ng (Disclosures and Obliga� ons Requirements) Regula� ons, 2015.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
As required under Sec� on 134(3)(C) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Directors hereby state and con rm that they have:
a)  In the prepara� on of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March 2018, the applicable accoun� ng standards 

had been followed along with proper explana� on rela� ng to material departures;
b)  They have selected such accoun� ng policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and es� mates that 

are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of aff airs of the Company at the end of the 
Financial Year and of the pro t and loss of the Company for the year ended on that date;

c)  They have taken proper and suffi  cient care for the maintenance of adequate accoun� ng records in accordance with 
the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preven� ng and detec� ng fraud and other 
irregulari� es; 

d) They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
e)  They have laid down internal  nancial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal  nancial controls 

are adequate and opera� ng eff ec� vely.
f)  They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 

systems are adequate and opera� ng eff ec� vely.
During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by the Auditors on the employees or offi  cers of the Company 
under sec� on 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
The Company is managed and controlled by professional Board of Directors with an op� mum combina� on of Execu� ve, Non-
Execu� ve and Independent Directors including one Woman Director. The Non – Execu� ve Independent Directors ful lls the 
condi� ons of independence speci ed in Sec� on 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has received necessary 
declara� on from each Independent Director of the Company under Sec� on 149(7) of the Act, that they meet the criteria of 
independence as laid down in Sec� on 149(6) of the Act.
Whenever new Non-execu� ve and Independent Directors are inducted in the Board they are introduced to our Company’s 
culture through appropriate orienta� on session and they are also introduced to our organiza� on structure, our business, 
cons� tu� on, board procedures, our major risks and management strategy. The appointment le� ers of Independent Directors 
has been placed on the Company’s website at www.blissgroup.com
SEPARATE MEETING OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
As required under Clause VII of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent Directors held a Mee� ng on 14th 
February 2018, without the a� endance of Non-Independent Directors and members of Management. 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY:
Pursuant to Sec� on 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a 
framework in rela� on to remunera� on of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the company. The 
policy also lays down the criteria for selec� on and appointment of Board Members.
Nomina  on & remunera  on Policy:
In accordance with the Nomina� on and Remunera� on Policy, the Nomina� on and Remunera� on Commi� ee has, inter alia, 
the following responsibili� es:
1.  The Commi� ee shall formulate the criteria for determining quali ca� ons, posi� ve a� ributes and independence of a 

director.
2.  The Commi� ee shall iden� fy persons who are quali ed to become Director and persons who may be appointed in Key 

Managerial and Senior Management posi� ons in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy.
3. Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel.
4.  The Commi� ee shall carry out evalua� on of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel 

at regular interval (yearly).
5.  The remunera� on/ compensa� on/ commission etc. to the Whole-� me Director, KMP and Senior Management 

Personnel will be determined by the Commi� ee and recommended to the Board for approval. The remunera� on/ 
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compensa� on/ commission etc. shall be subject to the prior/ post approval of the shareholders of the Company and 
Central Government, wherever required.

6.  Increments to the exis� ng remunera� on/ compensa� on structure may be recommended by the Commi� ee to the 
Board which should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case of Whole-� me Director. 

7.  Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Whole-� me Director, Chief Execu� ve Offi  cer, Chief 
Financial Offi  cer, the Company Secretary and any other employees for indemnifying them against any liability, the 
premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the remunera� on payable to any such personnel. 
Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the 
remunera� on. 

8.  The Non- Execu� ve/ Independent Director may receive remunera� on by way of fees for a� ending mee� ngs of Board 
or Commi� ee thereof provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed Rs. One lakh per mee� ng of the Board 
or Commi� ee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from � me to � me.

9.  Commission to Non-Execu� ve/ Independent Directors may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, 
subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of the net pro ts of the Company computed as per the applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

BOARD EVALUATION:
Pursuant to the provision of the Companies Act, 2013, a structured ques� onnaire was prepared a� er taking into considera� on 
of the various aspects of the Boards’ func� oning, composi� on of the Board and its commi� ees, culture, execu� on and 
performance of speci c du� es, obliga� ons and governance.
The performance evalua� on of the Independent Directors was completed. The performance evalua� on of the Chairman 
and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Board of Director expressed their 
sa� sfac� on with the evalua� on process.
AUDIT COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:
During the year all the recommenda� ons of the Audit Commi� ee were accepted by the Board. Pursuant to Sec� on 177(8) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the Composi� on of Audit Commi� ee is given as under:
Composi� on of Audit Commi� ee:
The Composi� on of the Audit Commi� ee as on 31st March 2018 is as follows:

• Sri R Sukumar – Chairman cum Member
• Sri S Ramakrishnan – Member
• Sri G P N Gupta  – Member
• Smt Shobha Gupta - Member
• The Company Secretary shall act as the Secretary of the Commi� ee

INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE:
The Company has in place an An�  Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Preven� on, Prohibi� on and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Internal Complaints Commi� ee (“ICC”) has 
been set up to redress the complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees are covered under this policy. No 
Complaints were received and disposed off  during the year under review. Further, in the mee� ng held on 30th May 2018, the 
Board has approved the recons� tu� on of the Commi� ee with the following members:

1. Ms. Mahalakshmi - Presiding Offi  cer 
2. Shri. Mr. Maria Augus� n – Member 
3. Ms. Rathi Kumari– Independent Member
4. Ms. Anjali – Member

VIGIL MECHANISM:
Pursuant to Sec� on 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has established a Vigil Mechanism policy for directors 
and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviors, actual or suspected fraud, viola� ons of Code of Conduct of 
the Company etc. The mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against vic� miza� on of employees who avail of 
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the mechanism and also provides for direct access by the Whistle Blower to the Audit Commi� ee. It is affi  rmed that during 
the Financial Year 2017-18, no employee has been denied access to the Audit Commi� ee. The vigil mechanism policy is also 
available in the company’s website www.blissgroup.com.
RISK MANAGEMENT
Pursuant to Sec� on 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has a risk management policy in place for iden�  ca� on 
of key risks to its business objec� ves, impact assessment, risk analysis, risk evalua� on, risk repor� ng and disclosures, risk 
mi� ga� on and monitoring, and integra� on with strategy and business planning. The Management iden�  es and controls 
risks through a properly de ned framework in terms of the aforesaid policy. 
STATUTORY AUDITORS:
Pursuant to the provisions of Sec� on 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of M/s. J.V. Ramanujam & Co,, 
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registra� on No. 002947S)  as Statutory Auditors of the Company have been approved in the 
26th Annual General Mee� ng of the Company. They shall hold offi  ce un� l the conclusion of the 31st Annual General Mee� ng 
of the Company.
COST AUDIT:
Pursuant to no�  ca� on of Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 
amendment rules, 2014, the Company’s product does not fall under the purview of Cost Audit from the  nancial year 2014-
15. The Company has also in� mated the non-applicability of Cost Audit to the Registrar of Companies.
SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:
Pursuant to the provisions of Sec� on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the Company has 
appointed M/s. Lakshmmi Subramanian & Associates, Prac� sing Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of 
the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report for the year 2017-18 is included as Annexure 3 and forms an integral part of this 
Report. There is no secretarial audit quali ca� on for the year under review.
LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS:
The Company has not granted loan or guarantee in respect of a loan to any person or body corporate or acquisi� on of shares 
in other body corporate under sec� on 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
All related party transac� ons that were entered into during the  nancial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in 
the ordinary course of business. There are no materially signi cant related party transac� ons made by the Company with 
Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a poten� al con ict with the 
interest of the Company at large. Thus, disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required. 
The related party transac� ons as required under Sec� on 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act 2013, r/w Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are detailed under Note 13 – Notes annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet of the company.
REMUNERATION RATIO OF THE DIRECTORS / KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) / EMPLOYEES:
The informa� on required pursuant to Sec� on 197 read with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remunera� on of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company and Directors is furnished hereunder:    
                        (Rs. in lakhs)

S. No. Name Designa  on as on 
31st March 2018

Remunera  on 
paid 

FY 2017-18

Remunera  on 
paid 

FY 2016-17

Increase in 
remunera  on 

from 
previous year

Ra  o /  mes 
per median 
of employee 

remunera  on
1 G.V. Gopinath Managing Director 11.52 11.52 Nil 4.13

2 G.S. Sridhar
Joint Managing 
Director and Chief 
Financial Offi  cer

11.52 11.52 Nil 4.13

3 M. Uma Maheswari Company Secretary 4.41 1.68 Nil 1.43
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Note:
1.  The remunera� on payable to the KMP / Whole � me directors are in accordance with the Industry and Geographical 

standards and as per the Remunera� on policy of the Company.
2. The percentage increase in the median remunera� on of employees in the  nancial year is 23.91%
3. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company as on 31st March 2018 is 54
4. The average increase in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in 2017-18 was 21.7%. 
5.  No remunera� on is paid to the Independent Directors of the Company other than the si�  ng fees of Rs.10,000/- for 

a� ending Board / Commi� ee Mee� ngs. The details of si�  ng fees paid to the Directors are set out in Extract of Annual 
Return (Annexure 2)

PERSONNEL:
None of the employees of the Company drew remunera� on which in the aggregate exceeded the limits  xed under Sec� on 
134(3)(q) read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera� on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The Par� culars rela� ng to conserva� on of energy, technology absorp� on and foreign exchange earnings and outgo as 
required under Sec.134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are 
enclosed as part of the Report as Annexure – 4.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

As prescribed under the provisions of Regula� on 15(2) of SEBI (Lis� ng Obliga� ons and Disclosures Requirements) Regula� ons 
2015, your Company does not fall under the purview of complying with the provisions of Corporate Governance. During the 
year, with the approval of Board of Directors, your Company has informed the non-applicability provision to the Bombay 
Stock Exchange.

Since, the provision of Corporate Governance is not applicable for the en� re Financial Year 2017-18, a separate report of 
Corporate Governance is not disclosed in the Annual Report 2017-18.

LISTING FEES:

The Company con rms that it has paid the annual lis� ng fees for the year 2018-19 before the due date to the Bombay Stock 
Exchange.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS AND SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS:

The Register of Members and Share Transfer books of the company will be closed with eff ect from 20th September 2018 to 
26th September 2018 (both days inclusive).

FIXED DEPOSITS:

During the  nancial year 2017-18, your Company has not accepted any deposit under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 read together with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Your company has repaid all the deposits 
accepted under Companies Act, 1956 with interest and as such no amount of principal or interest was outstanding as on the 
Balance Sheet date.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE COURTS OR REGULATORS OR TRIBUNALS:

During the year, the Company has not received any signi cant and material orders passed by the Regulators or courts or 
tribunals which would aff ect the going concern status of the Company and its future opera� ons.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The company has in place Internal Financial Control system, commensurate with size & complexity of its opera� ons to ensure 
proper recording of  nancial and opera� onal informa� on & compliance of various internal controls & other regulatory & 
statutory compliances. During the year under review, no material or serious observa� on has been received from the Internal 
Auditors of the Company for ineffi  ciency or inadequacy of such controls.

QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS:

Your Directors are happy to report that as a commitment in mee� ng global quality standards, your company con� nues to 
have ISO 9001:2015 quality management systems a cer�  cate from Intertek Cer�  ca� on Limited.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS:

Statements in this management discussion and analysis describing the Company’s objec� ves, projec� ons, es� mates and 
expecta� ons may be ‘forward-looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regula� ons. Actual results 
may diff er substan� ally or materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a diff erence to 
the Company’s opera� ons include economic condi� ons aff ec� ng demand/supply and price condi� ons in the domes� c and 
overseas markets in which the company operates, changes in the Government regula� ons, tax laws and other statutes and 
other incidental factors.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their sincere gra� tude to the encouragement, assistance, co-opera� on and 
support given by the Central Government, the Government of Tamil Nadu, the Karnataka Bank Ltd. during the year. They also 
wish to convey their gra� tude to all the customers, Auditors, suppliers, dealers and all those associated with the company for 
their con� nued patronage during the year.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their apprecia� on for the hard work and uns� n� ng eff orts put in by the employees 
at all levels. The directors are thankful to the esteemed stakeholders for their con� nued support and the con dence reposed 
in the Company and its management.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place : Chennai 
Date  :  9th August 2018

G V Gopinath 
Managing Director  

G S Sridhar 
Joint Managing Director and CFO



Annual Report 2017–18

17

ANNEXURE - 1

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW:
Global economic ac� vity which has been on an upswing con� nues to  rm up. Global output is es� mated to have grown by 
3.7 percent in 2017. The upturn is broad based, with growth increasing in more than half of the world’s economies. Global 
growth forecasts for 2018 and 2019 have es� mated to be at 3.9% for both years re ec� ve of the increased global growth 
momentum. This posi� ve outlook is mainly on the back of the strong performance expected out of advanced economies.
Indian economy is growing strong and remains a bright spot in the global landscape. It is widely considered as the most 
dynamic emerging economy among the largest countries, and is expected to con� nue its pace of rapid growth. This growth 
will be fuelled by robust expansion in private consump� on and the signi cant structural reforms by the Government in 
taxa� on, infrastructure investment and priva� sa� on. 
The path-breaking Goods and Services Tax (GST) became a reality. Leaving aside the ini� al short-term disrup� ons associated 
with any major structural reform, the bene ts of GST over the medium term are indisputable. In par� cular, the implementa� on 
of the GST, should help raise India’s growth, as it is likely to enhance the effi  ciency of produc� on and movement of goods 
and services across Indian states. As a result of these measures, along with the aba� ng eff ects of earlier policy ac� ons, the 
economy is set to progress on a sound  scal founda� on.
The year also witnessed signi cant steps being undertaken towards resolu� on of problems associated with nonperforming 
assets of the banks under the Bankruptcy Code, the implementa� on of a bank recapitaliza� on package for public sector 
banks. Further strengthening the momentum of reforms was the Union Budget 2018, which focused on upli� ing the rural 
economy, strengthening of the agriculture sector, healthcare for the economically less privileged, infrastructure crea� on and 
improvement in the quality of educa� on of the country.
Given the posi� ve developments and the series of major reforms undertaken over the past years, es� mated given that the 
Indian economy to regain its fastest growing economy tag by growing 7.4% in 2018 and 7.8% in 2019. India’s overall outlook 
remains posi� ve, driven by several factors. Strong private consump� on and services are expected to con� nue to support 
economic ac� vity. Private investments are expected to revive as the corporate sector adjusts to the GST, which over the 
medium term is expected to bene t economic ac� vity and  scal sustainability. Meanwhile, the steady global trade recovery 
is expected to encourage exports.
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS:
Packaging industry has an annual global turnover of about $550 billion, and India’s share is approx $16.5 billion per annum, 
making the Indian Packaging Industry rank 11th in the world. The Indian packaging industry is expected to grow to $32 
billion by CY2020 as per the Indian Ins� tute of Packaging (IIP). The industry cons� tutes about 4% of the global packaging 
industry. The per capita packaging consump� on in India is quite low at 8.7 kg compared to countries like Germany and 
Taiwan, as per data from the Indian Ins� tute of Packaging. As the requirement for packaging is rising across sectors with 
tradi� onal businesses preferring to package products, and the retail and e-commerce growing rapidly, the sector is growing 
at a robust pace. The industry certainly presents poten� al growth opportuni� es for new entrepreneurs, and small and 
medium enterprises.
The growth of the industry will be heavily in uenced by changing demographics such as growing urbaniza� on and the rising 
propor� on of middle class consumers. These changes drive the need for new packaging formats, such as diff erent sizes, 
materials, and strength. Indian packaging industry will see notable growth at a healthy CAGR of 9.2% during 2016-2021 as 
compared to 6.2% during 2011-2016. Demand for  exible packaging in the Indian market is es� mated to be nearly 5.6 billion 
USD in 2017, and is expected to grow at nearly 10 percent a year over the next  ve years according to analysis from PCI 
Wood Mackenzie. The market intelligence specialist’s Flexible Packaging Supply Demand Study – India report has iden�  ed 
India’s economy as having slowed in 2017, pos� ng the lowest quarterly GDP growth rate in the  rst quarter of the  scal year 
2017-18. 
Despite the current uncertainty, the government in India is looking longer term at op� ons to boost the economy. Together 
with the introduc� on of GST, which is designed to simplify India’s complex and localized tax system, regula� ons around 
Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) have been relaxed, which will help drive demand for  exible packaging in the Indian market. 
Recent government ini� a� ves have had a signi cant impact on the packaging market, along with the Indian economy as a 
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whole, and it expects to see the volume of business conducted through the unorganized sector to diminish at a fairly rapid 
rate as the country pushes for a more structured and formal process for industry to operate in.
Indian-made  exible packaging machines, which come with all innova� ve technologies that any top-end European or Western 
players provide, will de nitely empower the Indian converters and packaging solu� on providers to deliver same effi  ciency 
and produc� vity with new standard in cost eff ec� veness. India is a growing market for plas� cs and consumes about 12.8 
million metric tonnes (MMT) of plas� cs annually against global consump� on of 285 MMT per year. The plas� cs and polymer 
consump� on is growing at an average rate of 10 percent. The prospects for packaging sector depend on growth of industries 
such as food processing, pharmaceu� cals, retail and e-commerce. While scope for growth for packaging companies catering 
to these industries is humungous, the Government and industry need to frame and abide by be� er manufacturing processes 
and quality standards.
SCOT ANALYSIS: 
OPPORTUNITIES AND STRENGTHS:
Your Company is an ISO 9001:2015 cer�  ed company mainly engaged in the manufacturing and supply of Polypropylene (PP) 
Woven Sacks bags and PP Kra�  Paper Bags for domes� c and export markets. Other ranges of products are sold under the 
brand name - BOPPACK and STANFAB. The Company is con� nuously doing Research & Development Ac� vi� es to produce 
best of its products as per the need of customers. The Market is growing in developing countries and developed countries. 
The Company off ers various packaging solu� ons for wide range of end users such as Bulk Packaging, Chemicals, Agro 
Products, Aqua feeds, Building Materials, Castor  akes, Chemicals, Dairy Product, Fer� lizer, Flour, Food Product, Ma� ress, 
Mica, Minerals, Organic Spices, Pharma, Poultry Feed, Spices, Sugars etc.  
The Company has adequate produc� on capacity to meet the increased demand of the Customers. The Company has wide 
basket of products which caters to the customers across the country and R&D Department of the Company looks a� er the 
innova� on and also take into considera� on the standards laid down under the ISO cer�  ca� on. We are a supplier of various 
large public and private sector industries.  Due to increased demand and technological advancement the Company has wide 
opportuni� es to expand its business opera� ons and product base across the country.
Owing to developments across consumer and industrial markets that use PP Bags, improvements in manufacturing prac� ces, 
and con� nued technological innova� ons, the packaging market has been able to con� nually grow and evolve. As a result of 
the various features that come along with  exible packaging right from the ease of handling, storage, to being cost effi  cient, 
packaging has carved a strong posi� on for itself. Though Indian packaging industry is small when compared to global 
packaging industry; boom in organised retail and e-commerce off er huge poten� al for growth of packaging industry. The 
Government’s campaign on ‘Make in India’ which aims to turn the country into a global manufacturing hub will have posi� ve 
impact on the growth of packaging industry.
With growing popula� on, signi cant addi� ons to the working age popula� on over the medium to long term, rising disposable 
incomes even in rural areas, changing lifestyles and governments policies and ini� a� ves stressing on manufacturing in 
the country, there is increase in demand for innova� ve packaging products. Further, India is emerging as the preferred 
des� na� on for organized retail des� na� on in the world. Increased presence of global mul� na� onal companies and presence 
of E-commerce has boosted organized retail sector which in turn is pushing the growth of packaging sector.
CHALLENGES AND THREATS:
The company is engaged in the manufacture of PP bags and price of its raw material i.e. plas� c granules is aff ected by 
 uctua� ons in crude oil prices and dollar. Domes� c market is more price sensi� ve than quality sensi� ve. Vola� lity of Oil, 
currency & transporta� on cost, increased compe� � on are some major threats. Being a labor oriented industry with high 
requirement of skilled labor, shortage of labor is a major risk associated with the sector, however the Company has put in 
place adequate system to monitor labor requirement and have implemented skilled development training program within 
the premises.
Within the company the challenges are to maintain quality standards, customer sa� sfac� on and development and focus 
on R&D for new products. As manufacturing industry is seeing a shi�  from low output/technology to high output and 
sophis� cated technology, to have sustainable growth, the company has to maintain its leadership, and to achieve this 
company has to invest in upgrading technology to improve produc� vity and quality of its products. These challenges are 
further overcome by developing new products, developing new markets, concentra� ng on niche and premium markets, and 
using improved and be� er raw materials and procuring them at right � me and right price. The challenge is to keep the cost 
of produc� on low. With the expected increased availability of raw material pricing and procuring at right � me is a major 
challenge. Moreover unreliable power and high energy costs in India as compared to other countries add to high input costs. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM:
The Company has put in place an adequate internal control system to commensurate with the size of opera� ons that ensures 
adherence to the Company policies and compliance, assuring adherence of opera� ng guidelines and statutory requirements 
and ensuring reliability of  nancial and opera� onal informa� on and it also safeguards the company’s assets against loss 
from unauthorized use and ensures proper authoriza� on. These controls ensure that transac� ons are authorized, recorded 
and reported on � me. The system me� culously records all transac� on details. They ensure that assets are safe guarded and 
ensure opera� onal excellence. 
The Internal Audit department carried out audits in diff erent areas of Company’s opera� ons. The internal audit reports are 
periodically reviewed by the Audit Commi� ee of the Board of Directors. This Commi� ee then discusses and reviews the 
 ndings with the internal auditors as well as with senior management, including departmental heads. Wherever necessary, 
Internal Control Systems are strengthened and correc� ve ac� ons ini� ated.
HUMAN RESOURCES:
The company values its rela� onship with employees and ensures to create an environment and culture where employee 
is enthused to put his best eff orts and maximize his contribu� on. The overall industrial rela� ons atmosphere con� nued to 
be cordial. The company promotes just and fair employment prac� ces and also employee-friendly policies and processes 
ensuring their career aspira� ons are met through professional growth, personal development. The quality of the employees 
is the key to its success in the long run and the company is commi� ed to provide necessary human resource development. 
The Company has in place an An�  Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Preven� on, Prohibi� on and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Internal Complaints Commi� ee (ICC) has 
been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. During the period under review, there were no 
complaints received by the ICC.
OUTLOOK
Your Company is taking all possible steps to improve its performance and is also exploring various op� ons for improving 
its bo� om line. The Company is also making certain tac� cal changes which would result in further reduc� on of overheads 
thereby contribu� ng to the pro tability in the years to come. The Company is diversifying its presence in rural market through 
strong distribu� on network. The Company is also exploring the poten� al in the interna� onal market.
The Company ensures ge�  ng new models and designs of its product with the best and unbeatable quality at reasonable prices 
to cater to the requirements and preferences of its customers. The Company con� nued its focus on marke� ng ac� vi� es by 
par� cipa� ng in many new markets. Your company has introspected with its customer base and greatly recognizes the need 
for innova� ons and new product developments to drive growth and be� er margins. There is ample scope and opportunity 
for companies having business in these sectors not to men� on the poten� al of your company and its large presence in these 
sectors for many years.
Subs� tu� ons of Tradi� onal packaging and retail chains are the most important drivers for the market growth. The real 
opportunity lies in developing na� ons or emerging economies. The company being a fully integrated end-to-end packaging 
materials solu� on company, the window of opportunity is promisingly big. Innova� on to create value added diff eren� a� on; 
ability to execute any quantum of order; ensuring an enviable speed to market reach puts the company in a good stead to 
double up its top-line in the next 4-5 years.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:
Statements in the Directors’ Report and Management Discussion & Analysis contain forward looking statements. Actual 
results, performances or achievements may vary materially from those expressed or implied, depending upon the economic 
condi� ons, Government policies, subsequent developments and other incidental factors

For and on behalf of the Board

Place : Chennai 
Date  :  9th August 2018

G V Gopinath 
Managing Director  

G S Sridhar 
Joint Managing Director and CFO



Annual Report 2017–18

20

ANNEXURE – 2
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

FORM MGT 9
(Pursuant to Sec� on 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and

Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management & Administra� on) Rules, 2014)

Financial Year ended on 31.03.2018
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 

CIN L36991TN1991PLC021888

Registra� on Date 20.12.1991

Name of the Company Stanpacks (India) Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company Limited by shares / Indian Non-Government Company

Address of the Registered offi  ce and contact 
details

“S.K.Enclave”, No.4, Nowroji Road, Chetpet, Chennai – 600 031
Ph: 044 26452325  Fax: 91-44-26451720

Whether listed company Yes (Listed in BSE)

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar 
and Transfer Agent, if any

M/s.Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.
No.1, Club House Road, Mount Road,
Chennai – 600 002

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

All the business ac� vi� es contribu� ng 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:- 

S. No. Name and Descrip  on of main products/
services

NIC Code of the Product/
service

% to total turnover 
of the company

1 Ar� cles of Plas� cs and Polymers 3923 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

S. No. Name and address of the 
Company

CIN/GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of shares 
held

Applicable 
Sec  on

NIL
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):

i) Category-wise Share Holding:

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year*

No. of Shares held at the end of the year*

% 
change 
during 

the 
year*

Demat Physical Total
% of
Total

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of Total
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF 1479527 - 1479527 24.27 1479527 - 1479527 24.27 -

b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -

c) State Govt (s) - - - - - - - - -

d) Bodies Corporates 675395 - 675395 11.08 675395 - 675395 11.08 -

e) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -

f) Any other - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (A) (1): 2154922 - 2154922 35.35 2154922 - 2154922 35.35 -

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs - 
Individuals

- - - - - - - - -

b) Other - 
Individuals

- - - - - - - - -

c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

d) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -

e) Any Other - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (A)(2): - - - - - - - - -

Total shareholding 
of Promoter(A)= 
(A)(1)+(A) (2)

2154922 - 2154922 35.35 2154922 - 2154922 35.35 -

B. Public 
Shareholding 
1. Ins  tu  ons
a) Mutual Funds 87625 - 87625 1.44 87625 - 87625 1.44 -

b) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -

c) Central 
Government(s) - - - - - - - - -

d) State 
Government(s)

- - - - - - - - -
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e) Venture Capital 
Funds

- - - - - - - - -

f) Insurance 
Companies

- - - - - - - - -

g) FIIs - 1100 1100 0.02 - 1100 1100 0.02 -

h) Foreign Venture 
Capital Funds

- - - - - - - - -

i) Others (Specify) - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B)(1): 87625 1100 88725 1.46 87625 1100 88725 1.46 -

2. Non-
Ins  tu  ons
a) Bodies
Corporate
i) Indian 108058 4100 112158 1.84 109713 4100 113813 1.87 0.03

ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -

b) Individuals

i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital upto 
Rs.1 lakhs

1144507 880743 2025250 33.22 1144409 859743 2004152 32.88 (0.34)

ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of 
Rs.1 lakhs

1376033 37200 1413233 23.18 1444228 37200 1481428 24.30 1.12

c) Others (specify)
Hindu Undivided 
Family (HUF)

99413 - 99413 1.63 103661 - 103661 1.70 0.07

Non Resident 
Indians

78299 124000 202299 3.32 25299 124000 149299 2.45 (0.87)

Sub-total (B)(2): 2806310 1046043 3852353 63.19 2827310 1025043 3852353 63.19 0.00

Total Public 
Shareholding
(B) = (B)(1)+(B)(2)

2893935 1047143 3941078 64.65 2914935 1026143 3941078 64.65 -

C. Shares held 
by Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs

- - - - - - - -

Grand Total 
(A+B+C)

5048857 1047143 6096000 100 5069857 1026143 6096000 100 -
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ii) Shareholding of Promoters:

S.

No.
Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year

Shareholding at the end of the year
%

change
in

share
holding
during

the
year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledge/ 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledge/ 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

1 Balaji Trading Enterprises 
Private Limited

675395 11.08 - 675395 11.08 - -

2 Radhakrishna G 242900 3.98 - 242900 3.98 - -
3 Gupta G P N 189800 3.11 - 189800 3.11 - -
4 Chalapathi G V 107500 1.76 - 107500 1.76 - -
5 Sudhakar Gorantla 100000 1.64 - 100000 1.64 - -
6 G V Jayalakshmi 96800 1.59 - 96800 1.59 - -
7 Latharani G 79000 1.30 - 79000 1.30 - -
8 G S Sarojini 77800 1.28 - 77800 1.28 - -
9 M V Chandrashekar 75759 1.24 - 75759 1.24 - -

10 Pragathi G R 51600 0.85 - 51600 0.85 - -
11 Rajasekar G S 49000 0.80 - 49000 0.80 - -
12 Srinivas G S 42600 0.70 - 42600 0.70 - -
13 G R Mahalakshmi 41300 0.68 - 41300 0.68 - -
14 G Sangeetha 37200 0.61 - 37200 0.61 - -
15 Sathishkumar G V 34667 0.57 - 34667 0.57 - -
16 Anil kumar G S 32600 0.53 - 32600 0.53 - -
17 Jwala G S 31800 0.52 - 31800 0.52 - -
18 Ramraj G P 27900 0.46 - 27900 0.46 - -
19 Sridhar  G S 26568 0.44 - 26568 0.44 - -
20 Rachitha G B 23466 0.38 - 23466 0.38 - -
21 Nandhini G A 22500 0.37 - 22500 0.37 - -
22 Gorantla Ravichandran 20700 0.34 - 20700 0.34 - -
23 Balaji GV 18700 0.31 - 18700 0.31 - -
24 Vijaya lakshmi GS 12800 0.21 - 12800 0.21 - -
25 Reena G R 9600 0.16 - 9600 0.16 - -
26 G Ahalya 7500 0.12 - 7500 0.12 - -
27 Achyutha G R 6000 0.10 - 6000 0.10 - -
28 Sadavaktra Pravan G 5000 0.08 - 5000 0.08 - -
29 Gopinath G V 4967 0.08 - 4967 0.08 - -
30 Ravindra Reddy Madupu 3500 0.06 - 3500 0.06 - -

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding 

 -NIL-
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(iv) Shareholding Pa  ern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

S. No.
Name of the Top 10 

Shareholders

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Date of 
Purchase/ 

Sale

Increase/ 
Decrease in 

Shareholding
Reason

Cumula  ve 
Shareholding during 

the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

1 Muralidar G 298762 4.90 298762 4.90

2  Hitesh Ramji Javeri
JT1: Radhabai Ramji Javeri
JT2 : Harsha Hitesh Javeri

200000 3.28 200000 3.28

3 S Raja Mannar 110100 1.81 110100 1.81

4 A R Ganeshwar 103943 1.71 103943 1.71

5 Harsha Hitesh Javeri
JT1 : Hitesh Ramji Javeri
JT2 : Radhabai Ramji Javeri

99490 1.63 99490 1.63

6 Dipak Kanayalal Shah
JT1 : Mita Dipak Shah
JT2 : Sharad Kanayalal Shah

48712 0.80 21-Apr-2017 1288 Purchase 50000 0.82

01-Sep-2017 46294 Purchase 96294 1.58

24-Nov-2017 706 Purchase 97000 1.59

7 Indian Bank Mutual Fund 87625 1.44 87625 1.44

8 Indumouli M C 55200 0.91 55200 0.91

9 BITS Limited 43140 0.71 43140 0.71

10 Sivasubramanian 
Gopalakrishnan

40134 0.66 40134 0.66

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

S. 
No.

Shareholding of each Directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year

Cumula  ve Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company No. of shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

1 Sri G. Radhakrishna

At the beginning of the year 
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat 
equity etc): 
At the End of the year

242900

-

242900

3.98

-

3.98

242900

-

242900

3.98

-

3.98
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2 Sri G.V.Gopinath
At the beginning of the year 
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat 
equity etc): 
At the End of the year

4967

-

4967

0.08

-

0.08

4967

-

4967

0.08

-

0.08
3 Sri G.S.Sridhar

At the beginning of the year 
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat 
equity etc): 
At the End of the year

26568

-

26568

0.44

-

0.44

26568

-

26568

0.44

-

0.44

4 Sri G.P.N.Gupta
At the beginning of the year 
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat 
equity etc): 
At the End of the year

189800

-

189800

3.11

-

3.11

189800

-

189800

3.11

-

3.11
5 Sri M.Ravindra Reddy

At the beginning of the year 
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat 
equity etc): 
At the End of the year

3500

-

3500

0.06

-

0.06

3500

-

3500

0.06

-

0.06

(v) INDEBTEDNESS 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment (Rs. in lakhs)

Par  culars
Secured Loans

excluding deposits
UnsecuredLoans Deposits (*)

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
 nancial year 
i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid 
iii) Interest accrued but not due 

841.31
-
-

648.08
-
-

-
-
-

1489.39
-
-

Total (i+ii+iii) 841.31 648.08 - 1489.39
Change in Indebtedness during the 
 nancial year 
• Addi  on 
• Reduc  on 

122.71
-

-
(81.8)

-
 

-
40.91

Net Change 122.71 (81.8) 40.91
Indebtedness at the 
end of the  nancial year 
i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid 
iii) Interest accrued but not due 
Total (i+ii+iii) 964.02 566.28 - 1530.30
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remunera  on to Managing Director, Whole-  me Directors and/or Manager:   
                         (Rs. in lakhs)
S. No. Par  culars of Remunera  on Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total AmountSri G.V.Gopinath Sri G.S.Sridhar

1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained
in sec  on 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Pro ts in lieu of salary under
sec  on 17(3) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

11.52

-

-

11.52

-

-

23.04

-

-

2. Stock Op  on - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - -
4. Commission

- as % of pro t
- others

-

-

-

-

-

-

5. Others – 
Re  rement bene ts
Provision for leave salary

2.88
0.37

3.12
0.37

6.00
0.74

Total (A) 14.77 15.01 29.78
Ceiling as per the Act 84.00

B. Remunera  on to other directors:                                        (Rs. in lakhs)

S. 
No.

Particulars of 
Remuneration

Name of Directors
Total

AmountSri 
G.Radhakrishna

M.V.  
Chandrashekar S. Ramakrishnan M. Ravindra 

Reddy
Sanjay 

Ramaswami R Sukumar Shobha 
Gupta

1. Independent 
Directors
•  Fee for 

a  ending 
board / 
commi  ee
mee  ngs

• Commission
• Others

-

-
-

0.20

-
-

0.90

-
-

0.30

-
-

0.40

-
-

0.60

-
-

0.50

-
-

2.90

-
-

Total (1) - 0.20 0.90 0.30 0.40 0.60 0.50 2.90
2. Other 

Non-Execu  ve 
Directors

•  Fee for 
a  ending 
board / 
commi  ee
mee  ngs

• Commission
• Others

0.10

-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

Total (2) 0.10 - - - - - - 0.10
Total (B)=(1+2) 0.10 0.20 0.90 0.30 0.40 0.60 0.50 3.00
Total Managerial 
Remuneration 
(A+B)

3.00
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C. Remunera� on To Key Managerial Personnel Other Than Md/Manager/Wtd

S. No. Par� culars of Remunera� on
Key Managerial Personnel

CEO Company
Secretary CFO Total

1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
sec  on 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

4.41 11.52

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961

(Joint Managing Director is 
CFO of the Company)

(c) Pro ts in lieu of salary under
sec  on 17(3) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 - - -

2. Stock Op  on - - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - - -

4.
Commission
- as % of pro t
- others

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

5. Others
Re  rement bene ts
Provision for leave salary

-
-

-
0.07

3.12
0.37

-

Total - 4.48 15.01

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Sec  on of the 
Companies Act

Brief 
Descrip  on

Details of Penalty / Punishment/
Compounding fees imposed

Authority
[RD / NCLT/

COURT]

Appeal made,
if any

(give Details)
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -

For and on behalf of the Board

Place : Chennai 
Date  :  9th August 2018

G V Gopinath 
Managing Director  

G S Sridhar 
Joint Managing Director and CFO
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ANNEXURE-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018
[Pursuant to sec  on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera  on 

Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To the Members
Stanpacks (India) Limited
S.K.Enclave, New no:4 (Old no:47),
Nowroji Road, Chetpet,
Chennai-600031.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate prac� ces by Stanpacks (India) Limited (hereina� er called the company). Secretarial audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evalua� ng the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 
our opinion thereon.
Based on our veri ca� on of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns  led and other records maintained 
by the company and also the informa� on provided by the Company, its offi  cers, agents and authorized representa� ves during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering 
the  nancial year ended on 31st March, 2018, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
repor� ng made hereina� er:
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns  led and other records maintained by Stanpacks 
(India) Limited (“the Company”) for the  nancial year ended on 31st March, 2018 according to the provisions as applicable 
to the Company during the period of audit:
i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under and the Companies Act, 1956 to the extent 

applicable;
ii. The Securi� es Contracts (Regula� on) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula� ons and Bye-laws framed there under;
iv.  The following Regula� ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi� es and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 

Act’):-
 a) The Securi� es and Exchange Board of India (Substan� al Acquisi� on of Shares and Takeovers) Regula� ons, 2011;
 b)  The Securi� es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi� on of Insider Trading) Regula� ons, 1992 and the Securi� es 

and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi� on of Insider Trading Regula� ons, 2015;
 c)  The Securi� es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regula� ons, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
v.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regula� ons made there under to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (As informed by the Company, 
there is only an insigni cant amount of transac� on; hence no ac� on is required.)

vi.  The Lis� ng Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges, where the Securi� es of the Company 
are listed and the uniform lis� ng agreement with the said stock exchanges pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI 
(Lis� ng Obliga� ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula� ons, 2015.

vii. Secretarial Standards with respect to Mee� ngs of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Mee� ngs (SS-2) issued by the 
Ins� tute of Company Secretaries of India. 
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viii.  In our opinion and as iden�  ed and informed by the Management, the company has no speci c laws applicable since 
it is engaged in manufacturing of bags and other allied products except the following iden�  ed by the management:

 1. Indian Boilers Act, 1923 and Rules made thereunder 
 2. The Petroleum Act, 1934 and Rules and Regula� ons Made thereunder 
 3. Hazardous waste (Management, Handling and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2008 
 4. Water (Preven� on and Control of Pollu� on) Act, 1974 and Rules made thereunder 
 5. Air (Preven� on and Control of Pollu� on) Act, 1981 and Rules made thereunder 
 6. Environment (Protec� on) Act, 1986 and Rules made thereunder 
 7. Legal Metrology Act, 2009 and Rules made thereunder
It is reported that during the period under review, the Company has been regular in complying with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regula� ons and Guidelines, as men� oned above.
We further report that there were no ac� ons/events in the pursuance of 
a)  The Securi� es and Exchange Board of India (Share Based employee Bene ts) Regula� ons, 2014 and the Employees 

Stock Op� on Scheme, 2007 approved under the provisions of the Securi� es and Exchange Board of India (Employee 
Stock Op� on Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

b) The Securi� es and Exchange Board of India (Delis� ng of Equity Shares) Regula� ons, 2009
c) The Securi� es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securi� es) Regula� ons, 1998
d) The Securi� es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regula� ons, 2009;
requiring compliance thereof by the Company during the Financial Year under review. 
We further report that, based on the informa� on provided by the Company, its offi  cers and authorized representa� ves 
during the conduct of the audit, in our opinion, with regard to point (viii) above, the company has adequate systems and 
processes to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws , rules, regula� ons and guidelines including other general 
laws viz  Industrial laws, Human Resources and Labour laws and the following laws:
1. Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
2. Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 
3. The Contract Labour (Regula� on & Aboli� on) Act, 1970
4. The Factories Act, 1948
5. The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947
6. The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act 1946
7. The Workmen’s Compensa� on Act, 1923 & Rules 
8. Payment of Gratuity Act 1972 & Rules 
9. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 
10. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 
11. The Maternity Bene t Act, 1961
12. Appren� ces Act, 1961
We further report, that the compliance by the Company of applicable  nancial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, has not 
been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory  nancial auditor and other designated 
professionals.
We further report that:
The Board of Directors of the Company is cons� tuted with proper balance of Execu� ve Directors, Non-Execu� ve Directors 
and Independent Directors. The changes in the composi� on of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
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No� ces is given to all directors to schedule the Board mee� ngs, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were delivered and a 
system exists for seeking and obtaining further informa� on and clari ca� ons on the agenda items before the mee� ng and 
for meaningful par� cipa� on at the mee� ng.
All decisions at the Board Mee� ngs and Commi� ee Mee� ngs are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the 
mee� ngs of the Board of Directors or Commi� ee of the Board, as the case may be.
We further report that during the audit period no events have occurred, which have a major bearing on the Company’s 
aff airs.

For LAKSHMMI SUBRAMANIAN & ASSOCIATES

Lakshmmi Subramanian
Place: Chennai                          Senior Partner
Date:  09.08.2018                                FCS No. 3534

C.P.NO. 1087

ANNEXURE-A
The Members
Stanpacks (India) Limited 
S.K. Enclave, New No. 4 (Old No.47) 
Nowroji Road, Chetpet, 
Chennai - 600 031

1.  Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.  We have followed the audit prac� ces and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The veri ca� on was done on the random test basis to ensure 
that correct facts are re ected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and prac� ces, we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.  We have not veri ed the correctness and appropriateness of  nancial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company.

4.  Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representa� on about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regula� ons and happening of events etc.,

5.  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regula� ons, standards is the 
responsibility of the management. Our examina� on was limited to the veri ca� on of procedures on a random test 
basis.

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the effi  cacy or 
eff ec� veness with which the management has conducted the aff airs of the Company.

For LAKSHMMI SUBRAMANIAN & ASSOCIATES

Lakshmmi Subramanian
Place: Chennai                          Senior Partner
Date:  09.08.2018                                FCS No. 3534

C.P.NO. 1087
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ANNEXURE-4

INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, READ WITH THE COMPANIES 
(MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION) RULES, 2014

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(i) The steps taken or impact on conserva� on of 
energy

Energy conserva� on con� nues to receive priority 
a� en� on at all levels. All eff orts are made to conserve 
and op� mize use of energy with con� nuous monitoring, 
improvement in maintenance and distribu� on systems 
and through improved opera� onal techniques.

(ii) The steps taken by the Company for u� lizing 
alternate sources of energy

(iii) The capital investment on energy Conserva� on 
equipments

Total energy consump� on per unit of produc� on is as follows:-

S. No. Par� culars Current Year 
2017-18

Previous Year 
2016-17

1 Electricity purchased from Electricity Boards  

a. Total units purchased / consumed 14,83,392 16,32,336

b. Total amount of Electricity bill (in Rs.)      1,22,89,776 1,33,23,871

c. Rate per unit (in Rs.) 8.28 8.16

2 Own genera� on through Diesel generator

Diesel generator (in unit) 3,12,00 46,896

Fuel (in ltrs.) 10,279 15,407

Average unit generated per ltr. 3.04 3.04

Rate per unit (in Rs.) 19.75 18.61

B.TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:
The Company has taken various eff orts in u� lizing the maximum available sources of technology and has increased its 
produc� vity during the year. There is no major technology absorp� on or research & development cost incurred during the 
year.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 2017-18 2016-17

Foreign Exchange outgo

Imports (CIF) Nil Nil

Travel Nil Nil

Foreign Exchange Earned:

F.O.B. Value of Exports 22.46 53.35

For and on behalf of the Board

Place : Chennai 
Date  :  9th August 2018

G V Gopinath 
Managing Director  

G S Sridhar 
Joint Managing Director and CFO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of 
STANPACKS (INDIA) LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statement

We have audited the accompanying standalone  nancial statements of Stanpacks India Limited, Chennai, which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, and the Statement of Pro t and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and a summary of the signi cant 
accoun� ng policies and other explanatory informa� on.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the ma� ers stated in Sec� on 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the prepara� on of these standalone  nancial statements that give a true and fair view of the  nancial 
posi� on,  nancial performance including other comprehensive income, cash  ows and changes in equity of the Company in 
accordance with the Indian Accoun� ng Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under sec� on 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accoun� ng Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accoun� ng principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accoun� ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding  the assets of the Company and for preven� ng and detec� ng frauds and other irregulari� es; selec� on 
and applica� on of appropriate accoun� ng policies; making judgments and es� mates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementa� on and maintenance of adequate internal  nancial controls, that were opera� ng eff ec� vely for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accoun� ng records, relevant to the prepara� on and presenta� on of the  nancial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone  nancial statements based on our audit. In conduc� ng our 
Audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accoun� ng and audi� ng standards and ma� ers which are 
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the Order 
issued under sec� on 143(11) of the Act. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audi� ng speci ed under Sec� on 143(10) of the Act. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the  nancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the  nancial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the  nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal  nancial control relevant to the Company’s prepara� on of the  nancial statements that give a true and 
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evalua� ng the 
appropriateness of the accoun� ng policies used and the reasonableness of the accoun� ng es� mates made by the Company’s 
Directors, as well as evalua� ng the overall presenta� on of the  nancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the standalone  nancial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our informa� on and according to the explana� ons given to us, the aforesaid standalone 
 nancial statements give the informa� on required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accoun� ng principles generally accepted in India, of the state of aff airs of the company as at March 31, 
2018; and its Pro t, Total Comprehensive Income, the changes in Equity, and Cash Flows for the year ended on that date. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1)  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India 
in terms of sub-sec� on (11) of sec� on 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the ma� ers speci ed 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) As required by Sec� on 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

 a)  We have sought and obtained all the informa� on and explana� ons which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examina� on of those;

 c)  the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Pro t and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account;

 d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone  nancial statements comply with the Indian Accoun� ng Standards 
speci ed under Sec� on 133 of the Act.

 e)  On the basis of wri� en representa� ons received from the directors as on March 31, 2018 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquali ed as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director 
in terms of Sec� on 164(2) of the Act.

 f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal  nancial controls over  nancial repor� ng of the Company and the 
opera� ng eff ec� veness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

 g)  With respect to the other ma� ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informa� on and according to 
the explana� ons given to us:

  i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending li� ga� ons on its  nancial posi� on in its standalone 
 nancial statements.

  ii.  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law and Accoun� ng standards, for 
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts.

  iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the investor’s educa� on 
and protec� on fund by the Company.

For J. V. RAMANUJAM & Co.,
                Chartered Accountants,
                       (FRN No: 02947S)

Place: Chennai        J VEDANTHA RAMANUJAM
Date: 30th May, 2018          Partner
           M.No: 022188
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements” of our report of even date on the accounts of Stanpacks India Limited, Chennai 
(“the Company”), for the year ended March 31, 2018)

i) (a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full par  culars including quan  ta  ve details and situa  on 
of its Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE).

 (b)  According to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, physical veri ca  on of PPE is being conducted in a 
phased manner by the management under a programme designed to cover all the PPE over a period of three 
years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business. 
Pursuant to the program, a por  on of the PPE has been physically veri ed by the management during the year 
and no material discrepancies between the books records and the physical PPE have been no  ced.

 (c) The  tle deeds of immovable proper  es are held in the name of the company.
ii) (a) The management has conducted the physical veri ca  on of inventory at reasonable intervals.
 (b)  In our opinion and according to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, the procedures for physical 

veri ca  on of inventory followed by the management were reasonable and adequate in rela  on to the size of 
the company and the nature of its business.

 (c)  In our opinion, the company has maintained proper records of inventory. We are informed that no major 
discrepancies were no  ced on veri ca  on between the physical stock and book records.

iii)  According to the informa  on given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, 
 rms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other par  es covered in the register maintained under sec  on 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Therefore clauses (iii) (a), (iii) (b) and (iii) (c) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company.

iv)  The Company has complied with the provisions of the sec  on 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of 
loans, investments, guarantees, and security. 

v)  The Company has not accepted any deposits from public during the year hence the direc  ves issued by RBI and 
the provisions of sec  ons 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2015, are not applicable.  

vi)  The Company is not required to maintain cost records pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for 
maintenance of Cost Records under sub-sec  on (1) of sec  on 148 of the Act.

vii) (a)  According to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in 
deposi  ng with appropriate authori  es undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State 
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any 
other statutory dues as applicable to it. 

 (b)  According to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, 
Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2018 for a period of more 
than six months from the date they became payable.

 (c)  According to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, the par  culars of dues of Excise Duty, and Sales Tax 
which have not been deposited with the appropriate authori  es on account of any dispute are as follows:

S. No
Name of the 

Statute
Nature of Dues

Amt.
(Rs. in lakhs)

Pertaining Forum where the dispute is pending

i. Sales Tax Sales Tax Demand 3.53 1995-96 On Appeal the case was remanded back to 
the CTO

ii. Sales Tax Sales Tax Demand 1.28 1997-98
On Appeal the case was remanded back to 

the CTO
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viii)  Based on our audit procedures and according to the informa� on and explana� ons given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a  nancial ins� tu� on, bank, or dues to debenture holders. 

ix)  Based on our audit procedures and according to the informa� on and explana� ons given to us, the Company did 
not raise any money by way of further public off er (including debt instruments) during the year. According to the 
informa� on and explana� ons given by the management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans 
were obtained.

x)  During the course of our examina� on of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the 
generally accepted audi� ng prac� ces in India, and according to the informa� on and explana� ons given to us, no fraud 
by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its offi  cers or employees has been no� ced or reported during the 
course of our Audit.

xi)  Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informa� on and explana� ons given by the management, the 
managerial remunera� on has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of sec� on 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act;

xii)  In our Opinion, the company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore clause 3 (xii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

xiii)  In our opinion, all transac� ons with the related par� es are in compliance with sec� on 177 and 188 of Companies 
Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accoun� ng 
standards.

xiv)  According to the informa� on and explana� ons given to us, the Company has not made any preferen� al allotment 
or private placement of shares or fully or partly conver� ble debentures during the year under review, and therefore 
clause 3(xiv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

xv)  According to the informa� on and explana� ons given to us and based on our examina� on of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transac� ons with directors or persons connected with him. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi)  In our opinion and according to the informa� on and explana� ons given to us, the Company is not required to be 
registered under Sec� on 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

              For J. V. RAMANUJAM & Co.,
                Chartered Accountants,
                       (FRN No: 02947S)

Place: Chennai        J VEDANTHA RAMANUJAM
Date: 30th May, 2018          Partner
           M.No: 022188
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on 
the Standalone Financial Statements of Stanpacks (India) Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-sec  on 3 of Sec  on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”)

We have audited the internal  nancial controls over  nancial repor� ng of M/s Stanpacks India Limited (“the Company”) as 
of March 31, 2018 in conjunc� on with our audit of the standalone  nancial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal  nancial controls based on the internal 
control over  nancial repor� ng criteria established by the Company considering the essen� al components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor� ng issued by the Ins� tute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibili� es include the design, implementa� on and maintenance of adequate 
internal  nancial controls that were opera� ng eff ec� vely for ensuring the orderly and effi  cient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven� on and detec� on of frauds and errors, 
the accuracy and completeness of the accoun� ng records, and the � mely prepara� on of reliable  nancial informa� on, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal  nancial controls over  nancial repor� ng based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Repor� ng (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Audi� ng, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under sec� on 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal  nancial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Ins� tute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal  nancial controls over  nancial repor� ng was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated eff ec� vely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal  nancial controls 
system over  nancial repor� ng and their opera� ng eff ec� veness. Our audit of internal  nancial controls over  nancial 
repor� ng included obtaining an understanding of internal  nancial controls over  nancial repor� ng, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and tes� ng and evalua� ng the design and opera� ng eff ec� veness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the  nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Company’s internal  nancial controls system over  nancial repor� ng.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor  ng

A company’s internal  nancial control over  nancial repor� ng is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of  nancial repor� ng and the prepara� on of  nancial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accoun� ng principles. A company’s internal  nancial control over  nancial repor� ng includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly re ect 
the transac� ons and disposi� ons of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transac� ons are 
recorded as necessary to permit prepara� on of  nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted  accoun� ng 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisa� ons of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding preven� on or � mely detec� on 
of unauthorised acquisi� on, use, or disposi� on of the company’s assets that could have a material eff ect on the  nancial 
statements.

Inherent Limita  ons of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor  ng

Because of the inherent limita� ons of internal  nancial controls over  nancial repor� ng, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
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Also, projec� ons of any evalua� on of the internal  nancial controls over  nancial repor� ng to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal  nancial control over  nancial repor� ng may become inadequate because of changes in condi� ons, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal  nancial controls system over  nancial 
repor� ng and such internal  nancial controls over  nancial repor� ng were opera� ng eff ec� vely as at March 31, 2018, based 
on the internal control over  nancial repor� ng criteria established by the Company considering the essen� al components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor� ng issued by the 
Ins� tute of Chartered Accountants of India and jointly controlled companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as 
of that  date.

For J. V. RAMANUJAM & Co.,
                Chartered Accountants,
                       FRN No: 02947S

Place: Chennai        (J VEDANTHA RAMANUJAM)
Date: 30th May, 2018          Partner
           M.No: 022188
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2018
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars Note As at 31st March 
2018

As at 31st March 
2017

As at 31st March 
2016

A ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 2.1  346.87  412.82  438.97 
(b) Capital work-in-progress  -    -    -   
(c) Intangible assets  -    -    -   
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Other  nancial assets 2.2  24.46  24.99  18.69 
(e) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 2.3  46.22  51.09  63.84 
(f) Other non-current assets 2.4  98.87  133.11  152.01 
Total Non-current assets   516.42  622.01  673.51 

2 Current assets
(a) Inventories 2.5  1,285.32  1,343.61  1,436.12 
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables 2.6  455.04  475.20  247.49 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 2.7  1.48  5.53  1.35 
(iii) Bank balance other than (ii) above 2.8  19.28  17.00  15.82 
(iv) Loans 2.9  1.52  0.68  1.20 
(v) Other  nancial assets 2.10  -    75.35  -   

(c) Other current assets 2.11  11.32  4.09  9.97 
 1,773.96  1,921.46  1,711.95 

(d) Assets classi ed as held for sale  -    -    -   
Total Current assets   1,773.96  1,921.46  1,711.95 
TOTAL ASSETS  2,290.38  2,543.47  2,385.46 

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity

(a) Equity Share capital 2.12  609.60  609.60  609.60 
(b) Other Equity 2.13  (337.90)  (365.91)  (383.93)
Total Equity  271.70  243.69  225.67 
Liabili  es   

2 Non-current liabili  es   
(a) Financial liabili� es

(i) Borrowings 2.14  694.37  674.79  693.19 
(ii) Others  nancial liabili� es  -    -    -   

(b) Provisions 2.15  85.33  76.66  81.23 
(c) Other non-current liabili� es  -    -    -   
Total Non-current liabili  es  779.70  751.45  774.42 

3 Current liabili  es
(a) Financial liabili� es

(i) Borrowings 2.16  749.66  814.59  810.78 
(ii) Trade payables 2.17  333.90  488.39  370.82 
(iii) Others  nancial liabili� es 2.18  113.90  45.35  48.67 

(b) Other current liabili� es 2.19  41.67  61.90  11.42 
(c) Provisions 2.20  (0.14)  138.11  143.68 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  2,290.38  2,543.47  2,385.46 

Signi cant accoun� ng policies & Notes to accounts   1 to 20 
As per our report a� ached
For J.V. RAMANUJAM & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 002947S 

J.VEDANTHA RAMANUJAM
Partner
Membership No. 022188

Place : Chennai
Date   : 30th May 2018

For and on behalf of the Board

G V GOPINATH
Managing Director

G S SRIDHAR
Joint Managing Director and CFO

M. UMA MAHESWARI
Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars Note
For the year 

ended
31st March 2018

For the year 
ended 

31st March 2017
1 Revenue from opera� ons 2.21  3,216.83  3,167.54 
2 Other income 2.22  11.24  88.33 
3 Total Revenue (1+2)  3,228.08  3,255.87 
4 Expenses

(a) Cost of materials consumed 2.23  1,303.62  1,583.91 
(b) Changes in inventories of  nished goods and work-in-process 2.24  122.15  49.75 
(c) Excise duty and Sales Tax on sale of goods  430.78  467.25 
(d) Employee bene ts expense 2.25  208.34  156.81 
(e) Finance costs 2.26  211.74  243.01 
(f) Deprecia� on and amor� sa� on expense 2.1  68.18  71.10 
(g) Other expenses 2.27  836.44  653.28 
Total expenses (4)  3,181.25  3,225.11 

5 Pro t / (Loss) before excep  onal items and tax (3 - 4)  46.82  30.76 
6 Excep  onal items - -
7 Pro t / (Loss) before tax (5 - 6)  46.82  30.76 
8 Tax Expense

(a) Current tax  -    -   
(b) Deferred tax  4.88  12.75 
Total tax expense  4.88  12.75 

9 Pro t a  er tax from con  nuing opera  ons (7 - 8)  41.94  18.02 
10 Other Comprehensive Income

A (i) Items that will not be reclassi ed to Pro t or Loss
(a) Actuarial Loss on Gratuity 2.28  (13.93)  -   

B (i) Items that may be reclassi ed to pro t or loss reclassi ed to 
Pro t or Loss  -    -   

11 Total other comprehensive income / (loss) (A + B)  (13.93)  -   
12 Total Comprehensive income/Loss for the year (9 + 11)  28.01  18.02 
13 Earnings per share (of Rs. 10/- each):

(a) Basic 2.29  0.69  0.30 
(b) Diluted 2.29  0.69  0.30 

Signi cant accoun� ng policies & Notes to accounts   21 to 29   

As per our report a� ached
For J.V. RAMANUJAM & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 002947S 

J.VEDANTHA RAMANUJAM
Partner
Membership No. 022188

Place : Chennai
Date   : 30th May 2018

For and on behalf of the Board

G V GOPINATH
Managing Director

G S SRIDHAR
Joint Managing Director and CFO

M. UMA MAHESWARI
Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Par  culars Year Ended 31.03.2018 Year Ended 31.03.2017

A Cash Flow from Opera  ng Ac  vi  es
Pro t for the year  46.82   30.76  
Adjustments for:  -    -   

 Deprecia� on and amor� sa� on expense  68.18  71.10 
 Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)  -    -   
 Finance Cost  211.74  243.01 
 Interest income  (3.84)  (2.85)
 Bad debts wri� en off  (net)  -    -   
 Dividend income  -    -   

Opera� ng (loss) before working capital changes   322.90  342.02 
Adjustments for : 
(Increase) / decrease in opera  ng assets: 

 Trade receivables  20.15   (227.70)
 Other current assets  (7.23)  5.88 
 Other Non-current assets  34.24  18.90 
 Loans and other  nancial assets  75.04  (81.13)
 Inventories  58.29  92.51 

 Increase / (decrease) in opera  ng liabili  es: 
 Trade payables  (154.49)  117.57 
 Other  nancial and current liabili� es  48.33  47.15 
 Other Non-current liabili� es  -    -   
 Provisions  (143.51)  (69.18)  (10.14)  (36.97)

 Cash generated from opera� ons   253.72  305.06 
 Taxes paid  -    -   
 Net cash generated /(used in) from opera  ng ac  vi  es  253.72  305.06 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work 
in progress)  (2.23)  (44.96)
 Sale proceeds of property, plant and equipment  -    -   
 Deposit balances not considered as Cash and cash equivalents  (2.28)  (1.18)
 Purchase of investments  -    -   
 Interest received  3.84  2.85 
 Net cash  ow from inves  ng ac  vi  es  (0.67)  (43.29)

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 
 Proceeds from Borrowings  (45.36)  (14.59)
 Interest Paid  (211.74)  (243.01)
 Net cash generated from  nancing ac  vi  es  (257.10)  (257.60)
 Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents(A+B+C)  (4.05)  4.18 
 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  5.53  1.35 
 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  1.48  5.53 
 Reconcilia  on for cash and cash equivalents: 
 Cash and cash equivalents as at the year end as per Balance Sheet   1.48              5.53 
 Less: Lien marked deposits   -    -   
 Cash & cash equivalents - closing balance  1.48  5.53 

As per our report a� ached
For J.V. RAMANUJAM & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 002947S 
J.VEDANTHA RAMANUJAM
Partner
Membership No. 022188
Place : Chennai
Date   : 30th May 2018

For and on behalf of the Board

G V GOPINATH
Managing Director

G S SRIDHAR
Joint Managing Director and CFO

M. UMA MAHESWARI
Company Secretary
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Equity Share Capital     

Par  culars  Amount 

Equity shares of Rs.10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Balance at April 01, 2016  609.60 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -   

Balance at March 31, 2017  609.60 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -   

Balance at March 31, 2018  609.60 

Other Equity     

 Par  culars 

Reserves & Surplus
Items of other 
comprehensive 

income

 Total Equity 
a  ributable 

to equity 
share holder 

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Securi  es 
Premium 

 General 
Reserve 

 Acturial Gain/
Loss 

Balance as of April 1, 2016  (383.93)  -    -    -    (383.93)

Changes in the equity for the year March 
31, 2017

Pro ts for the year  18.02  -    -    -    18.02 

Other comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    -   

Balance as of March 31, 2017  (365.91)  -    -    -    (365.91)

Changes in the equity for the year March 
31, 2018

Pro ts for the year  41.94  -    -    41.94 

Other comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    (13.93)  (13.93)

Balance as of March 31, 2017  (323.97)  -    -    (13.93)  (337.90)

As per our report a� ached
For J.V. RAMANUJAM & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 002947S 
J.VEDANTHA RAMANUJAM
Partner
Membership No. 022188
Place : Chennai
Date   : 30th May 2018

For and on behalf of the Board

G V GOPINATH
Managing Director

G S SRIDHAR
Joint Managing Director and CFO

M. UMA MAHESWARI
Company Secretary
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CORPORATE INFORMATION:
Stanpacks (India) Limited is a Public Company in India, incorporated on 20th December 1991. The Company is engaged in the 
business of manufacturing Polypropylene Bags. The shares of the Company are being listed in the Bombay Stock Exchange. 
1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
1.1. Basis Of Prepara  on Of Financial Statements:
The  nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accoun� ng Standards (Ind AS) as no�  ed under 
the Companies (Indian Accoun� ng Standards) Rules, 2015. The provisions of the Act (to the extent no�  ed) and guidelines 
issued by the Securi� es and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). 
Beginning April 1, 2017, the company has for the  rst � me adopted Ind AS with a transi� on date of April 1, 2016. The  nancial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS prescribed under Sec� on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
other recognised accoun� ng prac� ces and policies to the extent applicable.
The  nancial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost conven� on except for certain  nancial 
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each repor� ng period, as explained in the accoun� ng policies 
below. 
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the considera� on given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value 
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transac� on between market 
par� cipants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or es� mated using another 
valua� on technique. In es� ma� ng the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteris� cs of 
the asset or liability if market par� cipants would take those characteris� cs into account when pricing the asset or liability at 
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these   nancial statements is determined 
on above basis, except for lease transac� ons that are within the scope of Ind AS 17 - Leases, and measurements that have 
some similari� es to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 - Inventories or value in use in Ind 
AS 36 - Impairment of Assets.
In addi� on, for  nancial repor� ng purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the 
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the signi cance of the inputs to the fair value 
measurement in its en� rety, which are described as follows:
•  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in ac� ve markets for iden� cal assets or liabili� es that the en� ty can access 

at the measurement date;
•  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, 

either directly or indirectly; and
• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
All the assets and liabili� es have been classi ed as current and non-current as per the Company’s normal opera� ng cycle and 
other criteria as set out in Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the � me between 
the acquisi� on of assets and processing and their realiza� on in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has ascertained its 
opera� ng cycle to be 12 months for the purpose of current – non-current classi ca� on of assets and liabili� es.
1.2. Use of Es  mates:
The prepara� on of  nancial statements in conformity with Indian Generally Accepted Accoun� ng Policies (GAAP) requires 
management to make es� mates and assump� ons that aff ect the reported amounts of assets and liabili� es and the disclosure 
rela� ng to con� ngent liabili� es as at the date of the  nancial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the repor� ng period.  Actual results could diff er from these es� mates. Any revision to accoun� ng es� mates 
is recognized prospec� vely in the current and future periods.
1.3.  Fixed Assets:
Fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisi� on, net of accumulated deprecia� on and impairment losses. The cost of  xed 
assets includes freight, du� es, taxes and other incidental expenses rela� ng to acquisi� on. Where  xed assets have been 
acquired from a country outside India, the cost of these  xed assets also includes exchange diff erences (favorable and 
unfavorable) arising in respect of foreign currency loans on other liabili� es incurred speci cally for the purpose of their 
acquisi� on. Borrowing costs related to the acquisi� on or construc� on of the qualifying  xed assets for the period up to the 
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comple� on of their acquisi� on or construc� ons are capitalized. Losses arising from the re� rement and the gains or losses 
arising from disposal of  xed assets which are carried at cost are recognized in the Statement of Pro t & Loss.
For transi� on to Ind AS, the Company has elected to con� nue with the carrying value of its property, plant and equipment 
recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transi� on date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as deemed 
cost as of the transi� on date.
1.4. Deprecia  on:
As prescribed under part C of schedule II of Companies Act, 2013, from the Financial Year 2014-15, Deprecia� on is 
systema� cally allocated over the useful life of an asset. The deprecia� on is provided on the Straight Line Method from the 
beginning of the month in which the asset is ready for use. Deprecia� on on addi� ons to assets or on sale / disposal of assets, 
is calculated on pro rata basis from the month of such addi� on or upto the month of such sale / disposal as the case may be.
1.5. Revenue Recogni  on:
Revenue from sale of manufactured goods, including scrap, is recognized on transfer of all signi cant risks and rewards of 
ownership to the buyer. The amount recognized as sale is inclusive of excise duty sales tax, and net of, trade and quan� ty 
discounts on accrual basis. Interest on deployment of surplus funds is recognized using the � me propor� onate method based 
on underlying interest rates.
1.6. Inventories:
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made 
on an item by item basis.
Cost comprises of purchase price and all incidental expenses incurred in bringing the inventory to its present loca� on and 
condi� on. The method of determina� on of cost is as follows:
 a. Raw materials, valued at cost net of cenvat
 b.  Finished goods at lower of cost or net realizable value and inclusive of excise duty  (� ll 30th June 2017). With the 

advent of GST which has replaced Excise Duty along with other indirect Taxes, Closing Stock of Finished Goods doesn’t 
include excise duty or GST (Since the same is on Sale of Goods).

 c. Goods in Transit valued at cost excluding excise duty and taxes.
 d. Stock of scrap at es� mated realizable value.
 e. Stores and spares – landed cost on a  rst in  rst out method
The provision for inventory obsolescence is assessed annually and is provided as and when considered necessary
1.7. Foreign Exchange Transac  ons:
Foreign currency transac� ons are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the respec� ve transac� on. 
Exchange diff erences arising on foreign exchange transac� ons se� led during the year are recognized in the Statement of 
pro t and loss of the year, except that exchange diff erences related to acquisi� on of  xed assets from a country outside India 
are adjusted in the carrying amount of the related  xed assets.
Monetary assets and liabili� es denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated at the closing 
exchange rates on that date; the resultant exchange diff erences are recognized in the statement of pro t and loss except 
those related to acquisi� on of  xed assets from a country outside India which are adjusted in the carrying amount of the 
related  xed assets
1.8. Provisions and con  ngent liabili  es:
The Company recognizes a provision when there is a present obliga� on as a result of a past event that probably requires 
an ou� low of resources and a reliable es� mate can be made of the amount of the obliga� on.  A disclosure for a con� ngent 
liability is made when there is a possible obliga� on or a present obliga� on that may, but probably will not, require an ou� low 
of resources. Where there is a possible obliga� on or a present obliga� on that the likelihood of ou� low of resources is 
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of mee� ng the obliga� ons under the 
contract exceed the economic bene ts expected to be received under it, are recognized when it is probable that an ou� low 
of resources embodying economic bene ts will be required to se� le a present obliga� on as a result of an obliga� ng event, 
based on a reliable es� mate of such obliga� on.
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1.9 Tax on Income:
Income-tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the income-tax 
law) and deferred tax charge or credit (re ec� ng the tax eff ects of � ming diff erences between accoun� ng income and taxable 
income for the year) provided in the books of accounts. 
1.10 Excise Duty/Custom Duty/GST:
Excise Duty in respect of goods manufactured by the company is being accounted for at the � me of removal of goods from 
the factory for sale. Custom duty is accounted in the books as and when paid/incurred. Goods and Services Tax (GST) is 
payable on Sale of Goods/provision of Services and hence is accounted in the books at the � me of removal of goods from 
the factory for sale
1.11. Earnings Per Share:
The basic and diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net pro t a� ributable to equity shareholders for 
the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The company did not have any 
poten� ally dilu� ve equity shares outstanding during the year.
1.12. Re  rement bene ts to employees:
 I.  Short Term employee bene ts:
  Short term employee bene ts falling due within are recognized as an expense as per the Company’s Scheme based on 

expected obliga� ons. The bene ts like salaries, wages etc and the expected cost  of bonus, ex-gra� a are recognized in 
the period in which the employees renders the related service.  

 II. Re  rement bene ts:
  Re� rement bene ts comprise of provident fund, superannua� on and gratuity which are recognized as follows:
 a. Provident fund:
   This is a de ned contribu� on plan. Contribu� ons in respect of staff  and workers are remi� ed to provident fund 

authori� es in accordance with the relevant statute and are charged to statement of pro t and loss as and when due. 
The Company has no further obliga� ons for future provident fund bene ts in respect of these employees other than its 
annual contribu� ons.

 b. Superannua  on:
   This is a de ned contribu� on plan. The Company makes contribu� on as per the scheme to superannua� on Fund 

administered by Life Insurance Corpora� on of India. The Company has no further obliga� on of future superannua� on 
bene ts other than its annual contribu� ons and recognizes such contribu� ons as expense as and when due.

 c. Gratuity:
   This is a de ned bene t plan. Provision for gratuity is made based on actuarial valua� on using projected unit credit 

method. Actuarial gains and losses, comprising of experience adjustments and the eff ects of changes in actuarial 
assump� ons, are recognized immediately in the statement of pro t and loss as income or expense.

1.13 Research & Development:
Research & Development expenditure of revenue nature is charged to Statement of Pro t & Loss, while Capital Expenditure 
is added to the cost of  xed assets in the year in which they are incurred.
1.14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS:
Impairment of Assets:
The company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indica� on that an asset may be impaired. If any 
such indica� on exists, the Company es� mates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset 
or the recoverable amount of the cash-genera� ng unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduc� on is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the 
statement of pro t and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indica� on that if a previously assessed impairment loss 
no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is re ected at the recoverable amount.
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1.15 FINANCIAL ASSETS
All regular way purchases or sales of  nancial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way 
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of  nancial assets that require delivery of assets within the � me frame established 
by regula� on or conven� on in the marketplace.All recognised  nancial assets are subsequently measured in their en� rety at 
either amor� sed cost or fair value, depending on the classi ca� on of the  nancial assets.
Classi ca  on of  nancial asset 
Financial assets that meet the following condi� ons are subsequently measured at amor� sed cost less impairment loss 
(except for investments that are designated as at fair value through pro t or loss (FVTPL) on ini� al recogni� on):
 •  the asset is held within a business model whose objec� ve is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash  ows; 

and
 •  the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on speci ed dates to cash  ows that are solely payments of principal 

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets that meet the following condi� ons are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVTOCI) (except for investments that are designated as at fair value through pro t or loss on ini� al recogni� on):
 •  the asset is held within a business model whose objec� ve is achieved both by collec� ng contractual cash  ows and 

selling  nancial assets; and
 •  the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on speci ed dates to cash  ows that are solely payments of principal 

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
All other  nancial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Financial Liabili  es and Equity Instruments
Classi ca� on as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classi ed as either  nancial liabili� es or as equity in accordance with 
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the de ni� ons of a  nancial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an en� ty a� er deduc� ng all of its 
liabili� es. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Financial liabili� es
All  nancial liabili� es are subsequently measured at amor� sed cost using the eff ec� ve interest method or at FVTPL. However, 
 nancial liabili� es that arise when a transfer of a  nancial asset does not qualify for derecogni� on or when the con� nuing 
involvement approach applies,  nancial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are measured in accordance with the 
speci c accoun� ng policies set out below.
Financial liabili� es at FVTPL
Financial liabili� es are classi ed as at FVTPL when the  nancial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at 
FVTPL.
A  nancial liability is classi ed as held for trading if:
 •  it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or
 •   on ini� al recogni� on it is part of a por� olio of iden�  ed  nancial instruments that the Company manages together 

and has a recent actual pa� ern of short-term pro t-taking; or 
 • it is a deriva� ve that is not designated and eff ec� ve as a hedging instrument.
A  nancial liability other than a  nancial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon ini� al recogni� on if: 
such designa� on eliminates or signi cantly reduces a measurement or recogni� on inconsistency that would otherwise arise. 
Financial liabili� es at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in pro t 
or loss.
Derecogni� on of  nancial liabili� es
The Company derecognises  nancial liabili� es when, and only when, the Company’s obliga� ons are discharged, cancelled or 
they expire. The diff erence between the carrying amount of the  nancial liability derecognised and the considera� on paid 
and payable is recognised in pro t or loss.
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Note 2.2  Other Financial Assets  (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

Non-current
(a) Insurance claims Receivable  
(b)  Deriva� ves designated and eff ec� ve as hedging 

instruments carried at fair value: 
-  Foreign currency swap contracts designated in hedge 

accoun� ng rela� onship
(c) Deposits in Electricity company  24.46  24.99  18.69 
(d) Prepaid Interest on Electricity Deposit  

  24.46  24.99  18.69 

Note 2.3  Deferred Tax Assets (Net) :  (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

At the Start of the year  51.09  63.84  63.84 
Charge/(credit) to Statement of Pro t and Loss  (4.87)  (12.75)
At the end of the year  46.22  51.09  63.84 

Note 2.4  Other Non Current Assets  (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

Non-current
(a) Trade Receivables  

Unsecured, considered good  -    47.40  51.16 
Unsecured, considered doub� ull   
Less: Provision for doub� ul debts  -    -    -   

(b) Balances with government authori� es - paid under 
protest  12.69  12.69  17.00 

(c) Other Deposits  86.18  73.02  83.85 
(d) Non current tax assets (Net) 

  98.87  133.11  152.01 

Note 2.5  Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

(a) Raw materials & Consumables  104.22  44.76  79.24 
      Raw materials in transit  -    -    -   
(B) Work-In-Progress (Refer Note 1)  -    -    -   
(c) Finished goods  1,131.27  1,253.42  1,303.18 
(d) Stores and spares  49.83  45.43  53.70 

  1,285.32  1,343.61  1,436.12 

Note 2.5.1  The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year was NIL (For the year ended 31 March 2017 : Rs. 
NIL)   

Note 2.5.2  During the year 2017-18 and 2016-17 there were no expense recognised against the write down of inventory from 
cost to net realisable value.   

Note 2.5.3  Inventories as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016) are expected to be recovered within twelve 
months.   

Note 2.5.4 The mode of valua� on of inventories has been stated in Note 3.5.   
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Note 2.6  Trade receivables (Unsecured) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

(a) Unsecured, considered good  455.04  475.20  247.49 
(b) Doub  ul  -    -    -   
(c)  Allowance for doub  ul debts (expected credit loss

allowance  -    -    -   

  455.04  475.20  247.49 

The average credit period on sales of goods is 30 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables.

Note 2.7 Cash and cash equivalents (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

(a) Cash on hand  1.48  5.53  1.35 
(b) Balances with banks

(i) In current accounts  -    -   
(ii) In Margin money deposit accounts 
- original maturity of 3 months or less  -    -    -   

   1.48  5.53  1.35 
Note 2.8  Bank balances other than Note 2.7 above (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

Deposits with maturity exceeding 3 months  19.28  17.00  15.82 
   19.28  17.00  15.82 

Note 2.9  Loans  (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

(a) Loans and advances to employees  1.52  0.68  1.20 
Considered good  1.52  0.68  1.20 
Considered doub  ull  -    -   
Less: Provision for doub  ul short-term advances  -    -    -   

   1.52  0.68  1.20 
 Note 2.10  Other  nancial assets  (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

(a) Claims Receivable  -    75.35  -   
(b) Asset held for disposal

  -    75.35  -   
Note 2.11  Other Current Assets  (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

Current
(a) Advances to vendors for materials/services
(b) Prepaid expenses  11.07  3.44  4.30 
(c) Balances with government authori  es  0.22  0.59  5.65 
(d) Travelling Advances  0.03  0.06  0.02 
(e) Leave Encashment

  11.32  4.09  9.97 
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Note 2.12  Equity Share capital (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars
 As at 31 March, 2018  As at 31 March, 2017  As at 1 April, 2016 

 Number 
of shares 

 Rs. in 
Lakhs 

 Number 
of shares 

 Rs. in 
Lakhs 

 Number 
of shares 

 Rs. in 
Lakhs 

(a) Authorised
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with vo� ng rights  7,000,000  700.00  7,000,000  700.00  7,000,000  700.00 

(b) Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with vo� ng rights  6,096,000  609.60  6,096,000  609.60  6,096,000  609.60 

Notes:        
1.  The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. Each holder of 

equity share is en� tled to one vote per share.    
2.  In the event of repayment of Capital of the Company, the distribu� on will be in the propor� on to the number of equity 

shares held by the shareholders.      
3.  Reconcilia� on of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repor� ng period: 

     

Par  culars Opening Balance Fresh issue Closing Balance

Equity shares with vo� ng rights    

Year ended 31 March, 2018    

- Number of shares 6,096,000  -   6,096,000

- Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)  609.60  -    609.60 

Year ended 31 March, 2017    

- Number of shares 6,096,000  -   6,096,000

- Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)  609.60  -    609.60 

4. Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:    

Class of shares / Name of shareholder 

 As at 31 March, 2018  As at 31 March, 2017  As at 1 April, 2016 
Number 
of shares 

held

% holding 
in that class 

of shares 

Number 
of shares 

held

% holding 
in that class 

of shares 

 Number 
of shares 

held 

% holding 
in that class 

of shares 
Equity shares with vo  ng rights       
Balaji Trading Enterprises Private Limited  675,395 11.08%  675,395 11.08%  675,395 11.08%

*Also refer Note 1

Note 2.13  Other Equity (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

Surplus / (de cit) balance in the statement of pro t and 
loss account    

Opening Balance  (365.91)  (383.93)  (480.13)
Add: Pro t/ (Loss) for the year  41.94  18.02  37.51 
Add: Prior period Deprn impact  -    -    -   
Add Deff erred tax impact  -   
Add: / (Less) Ind AS Impact Adjustments  58.69 
Closing Balance  (323.97)  (365.91)  (383.93)
other comprehensive income
Opening Balance  -    -    -   
Add: Movement in OCI (Net) during the year  (13.93)  -    -   
Closing Balance  (13.93)  -    -   

 (337.90)  (365.91)  (383.93)
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Note 2.14  Non-current borrowings (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

Unsecured - Measured at amor  sed cost
(a) Unsecured Loans from Others - Refer note 14(iii)  566.28  648.08  679.42 
Secured - Measured at amor  sed cost
(a) Term loans 

From bank - Refer note 14 (iii)  121.15  16.92  1.06 
(b) Long Term Maturi  es of Finance Lease Obliga  ons
Others  6.94  9.80  12.71 

 694.37  674.79  693.19 

2.14 (i) Details of terms of repayment for the other long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the secured  
long-term borrowings: (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars

Terms of 
repayment 

and 
security

As at 31 March, 
2018

As at 31 March, 
2017 As at 1 April, 2016

Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecured

Term loans from banks:
Karnataka Bank Limited - Secured Note 1  121.15  -    16.92  1.06  -   
Total - Term loans from banks  121.15  -    16.92  -    1.06  -   
Long Term Maturi  es of Finance 
Lease Obliga  ons

 6.94  -    9.80  -    12.71 

Others:
from Group Company
-Balaji Trading Enterprises Pvt.Ltd - 
Unsecured

 -    555.36  -    450.03  -    382.50 

Other par  es - unsecured  -    10.92  160.43  240.40 
Sales Tax Loan-IFST  37.62  56.52 

 128.09  566.28  26.72  648.08  13.77  679.42 

Note 1       
(a)  Working capital facili  es from The Karnataka Bank Limited are secured by  rst charge on the current assets consis  ng of  

stock  of raw materials,  nished goods, work-in-process, debtors and personal guarantees of directors G.P.N. Gupta, Sri. 
G. S. Sridhar and Sri. G.V. Gopinath.

(b)  Addi  onal working capital (Term Loan) facili  es from The Karnataka Bank Limited sanc  oned in the month of June 2017, 
repayable given a period of 12 months secured by  rst charge on the current assets consis  ng of stock of raw materials, 
 nished goods, work-in –process, debtors and personal guarantees of directors Sri. G.P.N. Gupta, Sri. G. S Sridhar and Sri 
G.V. Gopinath.

c)  Addi  onal Term loan facili  es from The Karnataka Bank Limited sanc  oned in the month of February 2018, repayable given a 
period of 34 months secured by Hypotheca  on of New Plant & Machineries and secured by charge on current assets of stock of 
raw material,  nished goods, debtors and personal guarantees of directors Sri. G.P.N. Gupta, Sri. G. S Sridhar and Sri. G.V. Gopinath.

Note 2.15  Long-term provisions (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

(a) Provision for Employee bene ts  53.00  44.10  48.67 
(b) Provision for Income tax earlier years  32.14  32.14  32.14 
(c) Provision for pending sales tax forms and other disputes  0.19  0.42  0.42 

 85.33  76.66  81.23 
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Note 2.16  Current borrowings (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

Secured - at amor  sed cost
Banks - Cash Credit  749.66  814.59  798.28 

Public Deposits  -    -    12.50 
 749.66  814.59  810.78 

Note 2.17  Trade payables (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

(a)  Payable to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises (Refer 
Note 16 (b) )  -    -    -   

(b) Other Than Acceptances
(i) Employee related liabili  es  -    -    -   
ii) Dues to related par  es (Refer Note 29)  -    -    -   
iii) Creditors for Goods and Services  333.90  488.39  370.82 

 333.90  488.39  370.82 

Note 2.17 (a)  Dues to Micro & Small Enterprises (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

(i)  Principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the 
end of the accoun  ng year  -    -    -   

(ii)  Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier 
as at the end of the accoun  ng year  -    -    -   

(iii)  The amount of interest paid along with the amounts 
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day 

 -    -    -   

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year  -    -    -   
(v)  The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid 

at the end of the accoun  ng year  -    -    -   

(vi)  The amount of further interest due and payable even in 
the succeeding year, un  l such date when the interest 
dues as above are actually paid

 -    -    -   

Note 2.18  Other  nancial liabili  es        (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

Non-current
(a) Trade / security deposits received  -    -    -   
Total Non-current  -    -    -   
Current
(a) Current maturi  es of long-term debt (Secured) (Refer note 14)  73.42  20.64  20.64 
(b) Current maturi  es of  nance lease obliga  ons  2.86  2.86  2.51 
(c) Current maturi  es of Sales Tax loan  37.62  21.85  25.52 
(e) Provision for Mark to Market losses on forward contracts  -    -    -   
Total Current  113.90  45.35  48.67 

  113.90  45.35  48.67 
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2.19  Other Current Liabili  es (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

(a) Advance received from customers  -    -    -   
(b) Deferred Rent  -    -    -   
Total Non-current  -    -    -   
Current
(a) Other payables 
(i) Statutory remi  ances  22.25  6.83  7.81 
(ii) Advances from customers  13.69  13.97  -   
(iii) Bonus payable  4.00  3.50  3.50 
(iv) Rent Payable  0.03  0.03  0.03 
(v) Others  1.70  37.57  0.08 
Total Current  41.67  61.90  11.42 

 41.67  61.90  11.42 

Note 2.20  Short-term provisions (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars  As at 
31 March, 2018 

 As at 
31 March, 2017 

 As at 
01 April, 2016 

(a) Provision for Excise duty on Finished Goods  -    138.11  143.68 
(b) Provision for Employee bene ts  (0.14)  -    -   

 (0.14)  138.11  143.68 

Note 2.21  Revenue from opera  ons (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars
For the year 

ended 
31 March, 2018 

For the year 
ended 31 March, 

2017 
(a) Sale of products (Refer Note (i) below)  3,216.83  3,167.54 
(b) Sales from Services (Refer Note (ii) below)  -    -   
(c) Other opera  ng revenues (Refer Note (iii) below)  -   
Total Revenue from Opera  ons  3,216.83  3,167.54 

 (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars
For the year 

ended 
31 March, 2018 

For the year 
ended 31 March, 

2017 
(i) Sale of products comprises : 
    Manufactured goods  3,216.83  3,167.54 
Total - Sale of products  3,216.83  3,167.54 
(ii)   Sale of services comprises :  -    -   
Total - Sale of services  -    -   
(iii)   Other opera  ng revenues comprise:
              Sale of scrap  -    -   
Total - Other opera  ng revenues  -    -   
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Note 2.22  Other income (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars
For the year 

ended 
31 March, 2018 

For the year 
ended 31 March, 

2017 
(a) Interest income on deposits  3.84  2.85 
(b) Interest on loans and advances  -    -   
(c) Professional Consultancy Charges Received  -    -   
(d) Other Non-Opera� ng Income

- Net Gain on foreign currency transac� ons and transla� on  0.10 
- Pro t on Sale of Assets  -    1.00 
- Other Income  7.30  84.48 

 11.24  88.33 

Note 2.23  Cost of materials consumed  (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars
For the year 

ended 
31 March, 2018 

For the year 
ended 31 March, 

2017 
Opening stock  44.76  79.24 
Add: Purchases
       Raw materials  1,363.08  1,549.42 
       Components
Total Purchases  1,363.08  1,549.42 
Less: Closing stock  104.22  44.76 
Cost of materials consumed  1,303.62  1,583.91 
Material consumed comprises:
PP Granules  1,303.62  1,583.91 

 1,303.62  1,583.91 

Note 2.24  Changes in inventories of  nished goods and work-in-process  (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars
For the year 

ended 
31 March, 2018 

For the year 
ended 31 March, 

2017 
Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished goods  1,131.27  1,253.42 
Work-in-process  -    -   

 1,131.27  1,253.42 
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods  1,253.42  1,303.18 
Work-in-process  -    -   

 1,253.42  1,303.18 
Net (increase) / decrease  122.15  49.75 

Note 2.25  Employee bene t expense (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars
For the year 

ended 
31 March, 2018 

For the year 
ended 31 March, 

2017 
(a) Salaries and wages including secondment cost and bonus  156.85  121.97 
(b) Contribu� ons to provident and other funds (Refer Note 33)  19.13  10.21 
(c) Staff  welfare expenses  32.36  24.63 

 208.34  156.81 
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Note 2.26  Finance costs (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars
For the year 

ended 
31 March, 2018 

For the year 
ended 31 March, 

2017 
(a) Interest expense on borrowings  203.53  234.77 
         Less Amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets  -    -   
Interest expense net of cost transferred to qualifying assets  203.53  234.77 
(b)Interest others  8.21  8.24 

 211.74  243.01 

Notes 2.27  Other Expenses (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par  culars
For the year 

ended 
31 March, 2018 

For the year 
ended 31 March, 

2017 
Consump� on of stores and spare parts  599.38  294.79 
Power and fuel  132.28  145.06 
Contract labour charges  92.96  15.92 
Rent including lease rentals  14.57  15.42 
Repairs and maintenance - Buildings  0.20  -   
Repairs and maintenance - Machinery  1.94  5.10 
Repairs and maintenance - Others (including spares)  1.26  1.22 
Factory General Maintenance  3.49  12.56 
Discounts and Incen� ves  0.42  2.94 
Insurance  20.41  4.34 
Rates and taxes  8.19  10.55 
Excise duty (Net)  (137.05)  (4.51)
Communica� on  3.56  3.51 
Travelling and conveyance  7.62  8.46 
Prin� ng and sta� onery  2.28  2.33 
Freight and forwarding  28.37  30.13 
Business promo� on & Selling expenses  2.65  0.57 
Legal and professional  4.24  4.46 
Payments to auditors  2.20  1.80 
Bad Debts wri� en off  8.61  9.91 
Provision for Con� ngencies  -    37.50 
Vehicle Maintenance  5.56  4.92 
Directors si�  ng Fees  3.04  4.60 
Bank charges  4.93  10.68 
Net loss on foreign currency transac� ons and transla� on  -    0.06 
Security Expenses  12.78  13.32 
Service Charges  8.24  9.23 
Training and seminar expenses  0.40  0.78 
Membership and subscrip� ons  1.20  0.88 
Offi  ce Maintenance Expenses  2.03  3.83 
Lab Tes� ng expenses  -    0.04 
Brokerage and commission  0.71  2.87 

 836.44  653.28 
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Note 2.28 Items that will not be reclassi ed to P&L (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par� culars As at
31st March 2017

As at
31st March 2016

Actuarial Loss on Gratuity  13.93  -   
 13.93  -   

Note 2.29: Basic and diluted earnings per share  (Rs. in Lakhs)

Par� culars For the year ended 
31 March, 2018 

For the year ended 
31 March, 2017 

Pro t / (loss) for the year a  ributable to owners of the Company  41.94  18.02 
Weighted average number of equity shares  6,096,000  6,096,000 
Earnings per share from con  nuing opera  ons - Basic / Diluted  0.69  0.30 

3 (i) Reconcilia� on of Balance Sheet as previously reported under Indian GAAP to IND AS     

As on March 31, 2017 As on April 01, 2016

 Par� culars Notes Previous 
GAAP 

Eff ect of 
transi� on 
to Ind AS

 Ind AS Previous 
GAAP 

Eff ect of 
transi� on 
to Ind AS

Opening 
Ind AS 

balance 
sheet

A ASSETS        

1 Non-current assets        

 (a) Property, Plant & Equipment  418.75 (5.93) 412.82 438.97 -   438.97 

 (b) Intangible assets  -   -   -   -   -   -   

 (b) Capital work-in-progress  -   -   -    -    -     -   

 (c) Financial Assets   -    -     -    -    -     -   

 (i) Investments   -    -     -    -    -     -   

 (ii)  Other  nancial assets (a)   24.99  -    24.99   18.69   18.69 

 (d)  Deferred Tax Assets (Net)    30.15 20.95  51.10   30.15 33.69  63.84 

 (e)  Other non-current assets (a) 133.11  -   133.11 152.01  152.01 

 Total Non-Current Assets  607.00 15.02 622.02 639.82 33.69 673.51 

2 Current assets        

 (a) Inventories  1,343.61  -   1,343.61 1,436.12  -   1,436.12 

 (b) Financial Assets        

 (i) Trade receivables  475.20  -   475.20 247.49  -   247.49 

 (ii)  Cash and cash equivalents  5.53  -   5.53     1.35  -       1.35 

 (iii)  Other bank balance    17.00  -    17.00   15.82  -    15.82 

 (iv) Loans (a)     0.68  -      0.68     1.20  -       1.20 

 (v)  Other  nancial assets (a)   75.35  -    75.35  -    -     -   

 (c) Other current assets (a)     4.09  -      4.09     9.97  -       9.97 

Assets classi ed as held for sale  -   

Total Current Assets  1,921.46 -   1,921.46 1,711.95 -   1,711.95 

TOTAL ASSETS  2,528.46 15.02 2,543.48 2,351.77 33.69 2,385.46 
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As on March 31, 2017 As on April 01, 2016

 Par� culars Notes Previous 
GAAP 

Eff ect of 
transi� on 
to Ind AS

 Ind AS Previous 
GAAP 

Eff ect of 
transi� on 
to Ind AS

Opening 
Ind AS 

balance 
sheet

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES        

1 Equity        

 (a) Equity Share capital  609.60  609.60 609.60  609.60 

 (b) Other Equity (c) (405.93) 40.02 (365.91) (442.62) 58.69 (383.93)

 Total Equity  203.67 40.02 243.69 166.98 58.69 225.67 

2 Non-current liabili� es        

 (a) Financial Liabili  es        

 (i) Borrowings  674.79 -   674.79 693.19  693.19 

 (b) Provisions (b) 76.66 -   76.66 81.23  81.23 

 (c) Other non-current liabili  es (b) 25.00 (25.00) -   25.00 (25.00) -   

 Total Non-Current Liabili� es  776.45 (25.00) 751.45 799.42 (25.00) 774.42 

3 Current liabili� es        

 (a) Financial liabili  es        

 (i) Borrowings  814.59 -   814.59 810.78 -   810.78 

 (ii) Trade payables  488.39 -   488.39 370.82 -   370.82 

 (iii) Others  nancial liabili  es (b) 45.35 -   45.35 48.67 -   48.67 

 (b) Other current liabili  es (b) 61.90 -   61.90 11.42 -   11.42 

 (c) Provisions  138.11 -   138.11 143.68 -   143.68 

 Total Current Liabili� es  1,548.34 -   1,548.34 1,385.37 -   1,385.37 

 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  2,528.46 15.02 2,543.48 2,351.77 33.69 2,385.46 

(ii) Reconcilia� on of Pro t or Loss as previously reported under IGAAP to Ind AS for the year ended March 31, 2017

Par� culars  Notes  Previous 
GAAP 

Eff ect of 
transi� on 
to Ind AS

Ind AS

1 Revenue from opera� ons - Gross  (d) 3,167.54 -   3,167.54 

 Excise duty and Sales Tax -467.24 467.24 -   

 Revenue from opera  ons - Net 2,700.30 467.24 3,167.54 

2 Other income  88.33 -   88.33 

3 Total revenue (1+2)  2,788.63 467.24 3,255.87 

4 Expenses     

 (a) Cost of materials consumed  1,583.91  1,583.91 

 (b) Changes in inventories of  nished goods and work-in-process  49.75  49.75 

 (c) Excise duty and Sales Tax  (d) -   467.24 467.24 

 (d) Employee bene ts expense  (c)(i) 156.81  156.81 

 (e) Finance costs  243.01  243.01 

 (f) Deprecia  on and amor  sa  on expense  65.17 5.93 71.10 
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Par� culars  Notes  Previous 
GAAP 

Eff ect of 
transi� on 
to Ind AS

Ind AS

 (g) Other expenses  653.28  653.28 

 Total expenses  2,751.93 473.17 3,225.10 

5 Pro t before tax  (3 - 4)  36.70 - 5.93 30.77 

6 Tax expense:     

 (a) Current tax expense  -   -   -   

 (b) Deferred tax  -   12.75 12.75 

 Net tax expense  -   12.75 12.75 

7 Pro t a� er Tax (5 - 6)  36.70 -18.68 18.02 

8 Other Comprehensive Income   

 Items that will not be reclassi ed to Pro t or loss    

 (a) Remeasurements of the de ned bene t liabili� es or (assets)  -   -   -   

 (a) Eff ec� ve por� on of gain and loss on designated por� on of 
hedging instruments in a cash  ow hedge

 -   -   -   

9 Total comprehensive loss for the year (7 + 8) 36.70 -18.68 18.02 

(iii) Reconcilia� on of Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2017

Par� culars  Previous 
GAAP 

Eff ect of 
transi� on 
to Ind AS

Ind AS

 Net cash  ows from opera� ng ac� vi� es 67.27 237.79 305.06 

 Net cash  ows from inves� ng ac� vi� es (43.96) 0.67 (43.29)

 Net cash  ows from  nancing ac� vi� es (17.95) (239.65) (257.60)

 Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5.36 (1.18) 4.18 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the Year 17.17 (15.82) 1.35 

 Cash and cash equivalents at end of the Year 22.53 (17.00) 5.53 

(iv) Equity reconcilia� on

Par� culars
As on 
March 

31, 2017

As on 
April 01, 

2016

 Equity as per previous GAAP 609.60 609.60 

 Impact on Ind AS Transi� on - - 

 Equity as per Ind AS 609.60 609.60 

Notes to reconcilia� ons:

(a)   Under the previous GAAP, there was no concept of  nancial assets. Assets were classi ed as Investments, Loans and 
Advances, Other Assets as the case may be. As per Ind AS 109, concept of  nancial assets has been introduced and based 
on the de ni� on, the following reclassi ca� on have been made:

  i)   Reclassi ca� on of capital advances, advances to vendors for materials/services, prepaid expenses, balances with 
government authori� es, deriva� ve assets from Loans to Other Assets.
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  ii)   Reclassi ca� on of security deposits, tool development costs recoverable and insurance claims receivable from Loans 
and Advances to Other  nancial assets.

  ii)  Reclassi ca� on of advance tax (net of provisions) from Loans and Advances to Tax assets (net).

(b)   Under the previous GAAP, there was no concept of  nancial liabili� es. Liabili� es were classi ed as Borrowings, Provisions, 
Other liabili� es as the case may be. As per Ind AS 109, concept of  nancial liabili� es has been introduced and based on 
the de ni� on, the following reclassi ca� on have been made:

  i)   Reclassi ca� on of trade deposits received, current maturi� es of long term borrowings, interest accrued but not due, 
payables on purchase of  xed assets from Other Liabili� es to Financial liabili� es.

(c)  Other Equity:        

  i)   Under previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses were recognised in pro t or loss. Under Ind AS, the actuarial gains 
and losses form part of remeasurernent of the net de ned bene t liability / asset which is recognised in other 
comprehensive income. Consequently, the tax eff ect of the same has also been recognised in other comprehensive 
income under lnd AS instead of pro t or loss.

(d)  Excise Duty:        

   Under previous GAAP, revenue from sale of products was presented net of excise duty under revenue from opera� ons. 
Whereas, under Ind AS, revenue from sale of products includes excise duty. The corresponding excise duty expense is 
presented separately on the face of the statement of pro t and loss. The change does not aff ect total equity as at April 
1, 2015 and March 31, 2016, pro t before tax or total pro t for the year ended March 31, 2016.

4.  With respect to the Balances of Debtors & Creditors and advances/deposits received from the customers as per books 
of account, con rma� ons of balances are awaited and adjustments if any will be made in the books on receipt of 
con rma� ons and reconcilia� on.

5.  The Company has recorded a Net Pro t of Rs. 41.94 lakhs achieving a turnover of Rs. 3216.83 lakhs for the year ended 
31st March 2018 as against Net Pro t of Rs. 18.02 lakhs with a turnover of Rs. 3167.54 lakhs in the previous year ended 
31st March 2017. The accumulated losses have been reduced to Rs.337.90 lakhs resul� ng with erosion of 55.42% of 
Networth as on 31st March 2018 as against 60.02% of Networth as at the year ended 31st March 2017.

  With the improvement in the performance during the year, the an� cipated big orders, the capability in produc� vity, 
the con� nuous working capital support by the bankers and the promoters, the Management is con dent of genera� ng 
pro ts in years to come and meet its  nancial obliga� on as they arise consequently resul� ng in wiping off  the erosion of 
Networth in the near future. The Company is con� nuously increasing its clientele and an� cipates higher rates of growth 
which will augur well for be� er prospects. Based on the above improving factors, the accompanying Financial Statements 
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

6. DUES TO MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES:

  The management is regularly in the process of iden� fying enterprises which have provided goods and services to the 
company which qualify under the de ni� on of micro, small and medium enterprises, as de ned in Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Act 2001. Accordingly, based on informa� on available, the amount payable to such enterprises as 
on 31st March 2018 is Nil.

7.   The computa� on of pro t under sec� on 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not considered necessary as the managerial 
remunera� on that is paid is minimum remunera� on based on the eff ec� ve capital of the Company as prescribed under 
Schedule V of the said Act.
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DETAILS OF MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Par  culars 2017-18 2016-17

Salary and Allowances                23.04 23.04

Perquisites - 3.24

Re� rement Bene ts 6.00 6.00

Provision for Leave Salary 0.74 4.84

TOTAL 29.78 37.12

8. SALES TAX & CENTRAL EXCISE DUTY PENDING DISPUTE:

S.No Name of the 
Statute Nature of Dues Amt. (Rs. in 

lakhs) Pertaining Present Status

i. Sales Tax Sales Tax Demand 3.53 1995-1996 On Appeal the case was remanded 
back to the assessing Offi  cer

ii. Sales Tax Sales Tax Demand 1.28 1997-1998 - do -

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: 

(i) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS:                                                           (Rs. in lakhs)

Par  culars 2017-18 2016-17

(a) Contribu� on to Provident Fund 9.55 6.94

(b) Contribu� on to Superannua� on Fund 2.16 2.16

(ii) DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS:-
Gratuity: 
The following table sets forth the status of the Gratuity Plan of the Company and the amount recognized in the Balance 
Sheet and Statement of Pro t and Loss. The Company provides the gratuity bene t through annual contribu� ons to a fund 
managed by the Life Insurance Corpora� on of India (LIC):

PARTICULARS (Rs. in lakhs)

1 Table Showing changes in present value of  obliga  on as on 31/03/2018 31/03/2017

Present value of obliga� on as at beginning of year 28.04 32.83

Interest Cost 2.24 2.62

Current Service Cost 1.41 1.89

Bene ts Paid (10.34) (2.23)

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obliga� ons 13.92 (7.07)

Present value of obliga� on as at end of year 35.27 28.04

2 Table Showing changes in the fair value of plan assets as on 31/03/2018 31/03/2017

Fair value of plan Assets at beginning of year 3.46 2.60

Expected return of plan Assets 0.23 0.23

Contribu� on 8.50 2.86

Bene ts paid (10.34) (2.23)

Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan Assets NIL Nil

Fair value of plan Assets at the end of year 1.85 3.46
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3 Table Showing fair value of plan Assets as on 31/03/2018 31/03/2017

Fair Value of plan Assets at beginning of year 3.46 2.60

Actual return of plan assets 0.23 0.23

Contribu  on 8.50 2.86

Bene ts paid (10.34) (2.23)

Fair value of plan Assets at the end of year 1.85 3.46

Funded Status (33.42) (24.58)

Excess of Actual over es  mated return of plan Assets NIL Nil

(Actual rate of return = Es  mated rate of return as ARD falls as on 31st 
March)

4 Actual Gain/loss recognized 31/03/2018 31/03/2017

Actuarial (gain)/loss on Obliga  ons (13.92) (7.07)

Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year – plan Assets Nil Nil

Actuarial (gain)/loss on Obliga  ons (13.92) (7.07)

Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year (13.92) (7.07)

5 The amounts to be recognized in Balance Sheet and Statement of Pro t & 
Loss

31/03/2018 31/03/2017

Present Value of obliga  ons as at the end of year 35.27 28.04

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of year 1.85 3.46

Funded States (33.42) (24.58)

Net asset/(liability) recognized in the balance sheet (33.42) (24.58)

6 Expenses Recognized in Statement of Pro t & Loss 31/03/2018 31/03/2017

Current service cost 1.41 1.89

Interest cost 2.24 2.62

Expected return on plan assets (0.23) (0.22)

Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement 3.42 4.29

Other Comprehensive Income

Net Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year 13.92 (7.07)

Components of de ned bene t costs recognised in other 
comprehensive income

13.92 (7.07)

Assump  ons

Discount rate 7.75% 7.75%

Expected rate on planned assets 7.50% 8.00%

Expected rate of salary increases 5.00% 5.00%

Expected rate of a  ri  on 3.00% 3.00%

Mortality IALM (2006-2008) IALM (2006-2008)

10.  During the  nancial year, there are no default in repayment of Loans and Interest in case of Term Loans, Lease obliga  ons, 
Demand loans, Public Deposits and other loans (including loans and advances from related party)
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11.  SEGMENTAL REPORTING:
Opera� ng segments re ect the Company’s management structure and the way the  nancial informa� on is regularly 
reviewed by the Company’s Chief Opera� ng Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM considers the business from both business 
and product perspec� ve based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the internal organisa� on and 
management structure. The opera� ng segments are the segments for which separate  nancial informa� on is available and 
for which opera� ng pro t / (loss) amounts are evaluated regularly by the execu� ve Management in deciding how to allocate 
resources and in assessing performance.
The accoun� ng policies adopted for segment repor� ng are in line with the accoun� ng policies of the Company. Segment 
revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabili� es have been iden�  ed to segments on the basis of their 
rela� onship to the opera� ng ac� vi� es of the segment.
Revenue, expenses, assets and liabili� es which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on 
reasonable basis have been included under unallocated revenue / expenses / assets / liabili� es.
Informa� on reported to the Chief Opera� ng Decision Maker (CODM) for the purpose of resource alloca� on and assessment 
of performance is being done in a consolidated basis with respect to its opera� ons and with respect to customers. Hence 
there are no separate segments iden�  ed for the purpose of segment repor� ng.

12.  Income Taxes

(i) Reconcilia� on between average eff ec� ve tax rate and applicable tax rate (Rs. in lakhs)

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accoun� ng pro t as follows:

For the year ended 
31 March, 2018

For the year ended 
31 March, 2017

Pro t before tax  46.82  30.76 

Applicable Tax Rate 30.90% 30.90%

Computed Tax Expense  14.47  9.51 

Tax eff ect of :   

Expenses disallowed  13.90 1.79 

Set off  of Brought Forward Business Loss/ Unabsorbed Deprecia� on  (28.37)  (11.30)

Current Tax Provision (A)  0.00  0.00 

Decrease in Deferred Tax Liability on account of Tangible and Intangible Assets  (25.65) (11.47)

Decrease in Deferred Tax Asset on account of Financial Assets and Other Items  30.53  24.21 

Deferred tax Provision (B)  4.88  12.75 

Tax Expenses recognised in Statement of Pro t and Loss (A+B)  4.88  12.75 

Eff ec� ve Tax Rate 10.41% 41.44%

(ii)  Following is the analysis of the deferred tax asset/(liabili� es) presented in the Balance sheet.

Par� culars  Opening 
Balance 

 Recognised in 
pro t and Loss 

Recognised in 
OCI 

Tax eff ect of items cons� tu� ng deferred tax liabili� es    

Property, Plant and Equipment  (80.56)  25.65 - 

Tax eff ect of items cons� tu� ng deferred tax assets    

Employee Bene ts  14.71 (0.07) - 

Brought forward business loss and unabsorbed deprecia� on  116.95  (30.45) - 

Total  131.66  (30.53) - 

Net Tax Asset / (Liabili� es)  51.09 (4.88) - 
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Par  culars  Opening 
Balance 

 Recognised in 
pro t and Loss 

Recognised in 
OCI 

Tax eff ect of items cons� tu� ng deferred tax liabili� es    

Property, Plant and Equipment  (92.03)  11.47 - 

Tax eff ect of items cons� tu� ng deferred tax assets    

Employee Bene ts  16.12 (1.41) - 

Brought forward business loss and unabsorbed deprecia� on  139.75  (22.80) - 

Total  155.87  (24.21) - 

Net Tax Asset / (Liabili  es)  63.84  (12.75) - 

Note 1:
The eff ect of the adjustments carried out by the Income Tax Authori� es based on their Assessment Orders, which are under 
dispute, has not been considered in arriving at the carried forward loss for deterring deferred tax asset.
13.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS                            (Rs. In Lakhs)

S.No. Par  culars Nature of Rela  onship Nature of Transac  on Amt.
Closing 

Balance as 
on 31.03.18

Closing 
Balance as on 

31.03.17

1 G. Sudhakar
Rela� ve of Key management 

personnel
Rent paid 2.34 - -

2 G.S. Sridhar Key management personnel

Salary & Allowances 15.01 - -
Unsecured loan Recd. 1.00

26.76 22.05Unsecured loan Repaid 2.25
Interest on Unsecured loan 2.96

3 G.V. Gopinath Key management personnel

Salary & Allowances 14.77 - -
Unsecured loan Recd. 12.49

27.31 29.40Unsecured Loan repaid 21.80

Interest on Unsecured loan 3.24

4 Jumbo Bag Limited Associated Company
Job work charges earned 77.29

88.37 56.46Purchase 636.11
Sales 300.01

5 G.F. Impex Pvt. Ltd., Associated Company

Unsecured Loan Repaid. 
(USL)

18.14

Unsecured Loan Recd. 
(USL) 

16.00
93.00 83.94

Interest on USL 12.44

6
Balaji Trading 
Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.,

Associated Company

Sales 0.46

317.03 307.03

Purchase 56.11
Unsecured Loan Recd. 
(USL)

23.30

Unsecured Loan paid 61.39
Interest on USL 40.11

7
Adarsh Line 
Accessories Pvt Ltd

Common Director

Professional Service recd 7.08

Sales 0.34

Unsecured loan Recd. 24.00
6.48 1.30

Unsecured loan paid 24.00
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14.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES: (Rs. In Lakhs)

Par  culars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017 

a) Disputed Amount of Sales tax 4.81 5.63

b) Disputed Amount of Central Excise 0 6.31
No provision has been made in the accounts in respect of disputed amount of sales tax as the company has contested the 
case and is hopeful of ge   ng the verdict in its favor. During the year 2014-15, the Company has received an order favoring 
them as no cost for the case  led for the year 1994-95. The Appellate Tribunal has issued certain claims/ show cause no  ces 
disputed have neither been considered as con  ngent liability nor acknowledged as claim, based on the opinion obtained, 
since the possibility of loss is remote.

15.   Secured Loans availed from The Karnataka Bank Limited are secured by  rst charge on speci c assets acquired out of the 
loan and personal guarantees of directors Sri. G.P.N. Gupta, Sri. G. S. Sridhar and Sri. G.V. Gopinath

16.  (a)   Working capital facili  es from The Karnataka Bank Limited are secured by  rst charge on the current assets consis  ng 
of  stock  of raw materials,  nished goods, work-in-process, debtors and personal guarantees of directors G.P.N. 
Gupta, Sri. G. S. Sridhar and Sri. G.V. Gopinath.

 (b)  Addi  onal working capital (Term Loan) facili  es from The Karnataka Bank Limited sanc  oned in the month of June 
2017, repayable given a period of 12 months secured by  rst charge on the current assets consis  ng of stock of raw 
materials,  nished goods, work-in –process, debtors and personal guarantees of directors Sri. G.P.N. Gupta, Sri. G. S 
Sridhar and Sri G.V. Gopinath.

 (c)  Addi  onal Term loan facili  es from The Karnataka Bank Limited sanc  oned in the month of February 2018, repayable 
given a period of 34 months secured by Hypotheca  on of New Plant & Machineries and secured by charge on current 
assets of stock of raw material,  nished goods, debtors and personal guarantees of directors Sri. G.P.N. Gupta, Sri. G. 
S Sridhar and Sri. G.V. Gopinath.

17. Interest Free Sales Tax Deferral:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Due within 1 year Rs. 37.62
Due within 1 to 5 years Nil
Due more than 5 years Nil

18.  Advances & Deposits includes an amount of Rs.12,69,309/- being Admi  ed and Disputed Sales Tax for various years 
paid and Income Tax for the Assessment Year 1996-97 of Rs.2,27,668/- paid, but kept as Deposit in the books since the 
company has gone on appeal in respect of these ma  ers.  Necessary adjustments in the books of accounts will be made 
in the year in which the outcome of the appeal is known.
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19. Deferred Tax - Following is the analysis of the deferred tax asset/(liabili  es) presented in the Balance sheet:
      (Rs. in lakhs)

Par  culars

For the Year ended 31 March 2018

Opening 
Balance

Recognised 
in pro t and 

Loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Closing 
Balance

Tax eff ect of items cons� tu� ng deferred tax liabili� es     

Property, Plant and Equipment  (80.56) 25.65 - (54.91)

Tax eff ect of items cons� tu� ng deferred tax assets     

Employee Bene ts 14.70 (0.07) - 14.63 

Brought forward business loss and unabsorbed deprecia� on 116.94 (30.45) - 86.49 

Total 131.65 (30.52) -  101.13 

Net Tax Asset / (Liabili  es) 51.09  (4.87) - 46.21 

 (Rs. in lakhs)

Par  culars

  For the Year ended 31 March 2017

 Opening 
Balance 

 Recognised 
in pro t and 

Loss 

 Recognised 
in OCI 

 Closing 
Balance 

Tax eff ect of items cons� tu� ng deferred tax liabili� es     

Property, Plant and Equipment  (92.02) 11.46 - (80.56)

Tax eff ect of items cons� tu� ng deferred tax assets     

Employee Bene ts 16.11  (1.41) - 14.70 

Other Items   -  - 

Total 16.11  (1.41) - 14.70 

Brought forward business loss and unabsorbed deprecia� on 139.75 (22.80) -  116.94 

Total 155.87 (24.21) -  131.65 

Net Tax Asset / (Liabili  es) 63.84 (12.74) - 51.09 

20. Expenditure in Foreign Exchange: (Rs. in lakhs)

Par  culars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017

Imported Materials Purchase (CIF) Nil Nil

Foreign Travel Expenses Nil Nil

21. Foreign Exchange Earnings:  (Rs. in lakhs)

Par  culars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017

 Export Sales (FOB) 22.46 53.35
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22. Remunera  on To Auditors:   (Rs. in lakhs)

Par  culars As at 31.03.2017 As at 31.03.2016

i) Statutory Audit Fee 1.00 0.75
ii) Tax Audit Fee 0.25 0.25
iii) Service Tax/ GST 0.22 0.15
iv) Cer   ca  on Fees & Other services 0.61 1.33

23. Financial Instruments

A. Capital risk management 
The capital structure of the company  consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity a  ributable to equity  
shareholders of the company which comprises issued share capital and accumulated reserves disclosed in the Statement of  
Changes in Equity.
The company’s capital management objec  ve is to achieve an op  mal weighted average cost of capital while con  nuing 
to  safeguard the company’s ability to meet its liquidity requirements (including its commitments in respect of capital 
expenditure)  and repay loans as they fall due. 

(Rs. in lakhs)
Par  culars As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017 As at 1 April 2016

Debt (Refer Note 14) 1,517.44 1,510.02 1,524.61 
Cash and Bank Balance (20.76) (22.53) (17.17)
Total Debt 1,496.68 1,487.49 1,507.44 
Total Equity 271.70 243.69 225.67 
Net Debt to equity ra  o 5.51 6.10 6.68 

(B) Categories of Financial Instruments
(a) Financial Assets   (Rs. in lakhs)

Par  culars As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017 As at 1 April 2016
Measured by FVOCI    

- Deriva  ve designated instruments carried 
at fair value                               -                                 -                                 -   

Measured at amor  sed cost    
- Trade receivables                      455.04                      475.20                      247.49 
- Cash and Bank balance                        20.76                        22.53                        17.17 
- Loans                           1.52                           0.68                           1.20 
- Other  nancial assets                        24.46                      100.34                        18.69 

(b) Financial Liabili  es :  (Rs. in lakhs)

Par  culars As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017 As at 1 April 2016
Measured at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)    

-Deriva  ve designated instruments carried 
at fair value                               -                                 -                                 -   

Measured at amor  sed cost    
- Borrowings                   1,517.44                   1,510.02                   1,524.61 
- Trade payables                      333.90                      488.39                      370.82 
- Other  nancial liabili  es                        40.48                        24.71                        28.03 
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B.  Financial Risk Management 

a) Market risk
The company’s ac  vi  es expose it primarily to the  nancial risk of changes in interest rates. There have been no changes to 
the company’s exposure to market risk or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk in recent past. 
i) Currency risk
The company has only negligible amount of exports . hence the company is not exposed to currency risk.  Foreign currency 
transac  ons are managed within approved policy parameters. 
24. Previous year  gures:
The company has reclassi ed previous year  gures to conform to this year’s classi ca  on. It signi cantly impacts presenta  on 
and disclosures made in the  nancial statements, par  cularly presenta  on of balance sheet.
25. CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION DURING THE YEAR 2017-18:
a.  Product: Polymer Product
       Licensed Capacity : Not applicable
   Installed Capacity : 3800 tons
   Produc  on  : 2730 tons

b. Raw Material and Intermediates Consumed: (Rs. in lakhs)

 Par  culars UOM
2017-18 2016-17

Qty. Value Qty. Value
A. PP Granules Kgs. 1,392,439 1303.62 1,778,140 1583.91
B. Others 77.62 294.79

c.  Consump  on of Imported & Indigenous Raw – Materials, Stores and spare parts and the percentage of each to the 
consump  on:

        (Rs. in lakhs)

Par  culars 2017-18 2016-17
% Value % Value

i.  Raw Material
     a. Imported - - - -
    b. Indigenous 100 1303.62 100 1583.91
ii. Stores, Spares & Consump  on
    a. Imported - - - -
    b. Indigenous 100 77.62 100 294.79

d.Stock Summary for the year 2017-18:

Name of the Commodity Unit Opening Balance Receipts Issues
Closing Stock

 2017-18  2016-17
Paper Kgs.  72,891  1,434,014  1,409,448  97,457  72,891 
Granules Kgs.  37,567  1,392,439  1,342,216  87,790  37,567 
HDPE / PP Bags Nos.  622,455  7,363,314  7,651,652  334,118  622,456 
HDPE / PP Kra   Bags Nos.  50,543  1,524,125  1,452,851  121,817  50,543 



Annual Report 2017–18

67

e. Closing Stock Value With Quan  ty As On 31.03.2018:

Name of the Commodity Unit
Quan  ty Value

 2017-18  2016-17  2017-18  2016-17 

Paper Kgs  97,457  72,891  20.09  16.47 

Granules Kgs  87,790  37,567  74.32  23.42 

HDPE/PP Bags Nos  334,118  622,456  1,003.02  1,024.45 

HDPE/PPKra�  Bags Nos  121,817  50,543  37.31  17.69 

HDPE/PP Fabric & HDPE/PP Kra�  Fabric   79.85  57.95 

Accessories for Bags  7.53  3.42 

Miscellaneous Items Including Consumables   63.21  62.33 

Provision for Excise Duty   137.88 

Total Value of Closing Stock   1,285.33  1,343.61 

f. Sales Summary for the year 2016-17:
(Rs. in lakhs)

Name of the Commodity 2017-18 2016-17

Polypropylene Bags 3156.43 3140.00
Others 60.4 27.54

26. First-Time Adop  on - Mandatory Excep  ons & Op  onal Exemp  ons

i. Overall Principle
  The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as of April 1, 2016 (the transi� on date) by recognising 

all assets and liabili� es whose recogni� on is required under Ind AS, not recognising items of assets and liabili� es which 
are not permi� ed under Ind AS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under Ind AS, and 
applying Ind AS in measurement of recognised assets and liabili� es. However, this principle is subject to the certain 
excep� on and certain op� onal exemp� ons availed by the Company as detailed below.

ii.  Derecogni  on of  nancial assets and  nancial liabili  es
  The Group has applied the derecogni� on requirements of  nancial assets and  nancial liabili� es prospec� vely for 

transac� ons occurring on or a� er April 1, 2016 (the transi� on date).\
iii. Classi ca  on of debt instruments
  The company has determined the classi ca� on of debt instruments in terms of whether they meet the amor� sed cost 

criteria or the FVTOCI criteria based on the facts and circumstances that existed as of the transi� on date.
iv. Impairment of  nancial assets
  The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospec� vely; however, as permi� ed by Ind AS 

101, it has used reasonable and supportable informa� on that is available without undue cost or eff ort to determine the 
credit risk at the date that  nancial instruments were ini� ally recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the 
transi� on date. Further, the Company has not undertaken an exhaus� ve search for informa� on when determining, at 
the date of transi� on to Ind ASs, whether there have been signi cant increases in credit risk since ini� al recogni� on, as 
permi� ed by Ind AS 101.

v. Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and investment property
  The Company has elected to con� nue with the carrying value of all of its plant and equipment, investment property, and 

intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transi� on date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying 
value as its deemed cost as of the transi� on date.



Annual Report 2017–18

68

vi. Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
  The company has applied Appendix C of Ind AS 17 - Leases determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease to 

determine whether an arrangement exis� ng at the transi� on date contains a lease on the basis of facts and circumstances 
exis� ng at that date.

Signatories to Schedules 1 to 26

As per our report a� ached
For J.V. RAMANUJAM & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 002947S 

J. VEDANTHA RAMANUJAM
Partner
Membership No. 022188

Place : Chennai
Date   : 30th May 2018

For and on behalf of the Board

G V GOPINATH
Managing Director

G S SRIDHAR
Joint Managing Director and CFO

M. UMA MAHESWARI
Company Secretary
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(Form No: MGT-11)

(Pursuant to sec  on 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administra  on) Rules, 2014)

Registered Address:
E-mail ID:
Folio/DP ID - Client ID:

I/We being the member(s), holding ___________ shares of the above named Company hereby appoint:

(1) Name:____________________________________________________________________________
Address:_____________________________________________________________________________
E-mail ID: ____________________________________________________________________________
Signature: _____________________,     or failing him;

(2) Name:____________________________________________________________________________
Address:_____________________________________________________________________________
E-mail ID: ____________________________________________________________________________
Signature: _____________________,     or failing him;

(3) Name:____________________________________________________________________________
Address:_____________________________________________________________________________
E-mail ID: ____________________________________________________________________________
Signature: _____________________

as my/our proxy to a� end and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 27th Annual General Mee� ng 
of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, the 26th September 2018 at 10.30 a.m. at Andhra Mahila Sabha, No.109, 
Luz Church Road, Mylapore, Chennai - 600004 and at any adjournment thereof, in respect of such resolu� ons as are 
indicated below:

Resolu  on No. Resolu  on Op  onal*

Ordinary Business: For Against Abstain

1 Adop� on of Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2018

2 Appointment of Director in the place of Sri. G.P.N
Gupta (DIN:00086174) who re� res by rota� on and being eligible, 
off ers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business:

3 Re-appointment of Sri. S.Ramakrishnan (DIN: 00075368) as 
Independent Director.

4 Sale  immovable property of the company situated at Nellore



Note: 

1.  *It is op� onal to put an ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the Resolu� ons indicated in the Box. If you leave the 
‘For’ or ‘Against’ or ‘Abstain’ column blank against any or all Resolu� ons, your Proxy will be en� tled to vote in the 
manner as he/she thinks appropriate.  

2.  Notwithstanding the above, the Proxies can vote on such other items which may be tabled at the mee� ng by the 
members present.

Signed this ____ day of __________________ 2018

Signature of shareholder ______________________________________

Signature of Proxy holder _____________________________________

Note:

1.  This form of proxy in order to be eff ec� ve should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Offi  ce of the 
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Mee� ng.

2. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. For the Resolu� ons, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the No� ce of the 27th Annual General Mee� ng.

4. Please complete all details including details of member(s) in above box before submission.
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Name of Proxy if a� ending on behalf of the member …………………………………………………

I cer� fy that I am a Registered Shareholder / proxy for the Registered Shareholder of the Company. I hereby record 
my presence at the 27th Annual General Mee� ng of the Company held at Andhra Mahila Sabha, No. 109, Luz Church 
Road, Mylapore, Chennai - 600004 at 10.30 a.m. on Wednesday, the 26th September 2018.

Ledger Folio No.

DP Id No. *

Client Id No. * 

No. of shares held

Mr. / Mrs. / Miss

* Applicable for members holding shares in dematerialized form

……………………………………..            …………………………………
Members’/ Proxy’s name (IN BLOCK LETTERS)             Member’s / Proxy’s Signature

Note: Please  ll in this a� endance slip and hand it over at the Entrance of the Mee� ng Hall.
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